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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business Review

As at 31st March, 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,693,426,000
(2018: HK$1,928,320,000), representing a decrease of 12.2% as compared with
the same period last year. Included in the amount of revenue, HK$1,408,287,000
(2018: HK$1,573,867,000) was generated by the cosmetics business, representing
a decrease of 10.5% over the same period last year and 83.2% of the Group’s
total revenue (2018: 81.6%). The revenue of the fashion business amounted to
HK$285,139,000 (2018: HK$354,453,000), representing a decrease of 19.6% as
compared with the same period last year. During the period under review, the retail
sales of cosmetic business increased in the first half of the financial year, with
the first quarter recording a higher growth, however the retail sales decreased in
the second half of the year. Under the influence of the Sino-US trade war and the
highly volatile global financial market, there was a continuation of uncertainties
such as depreciation of the Renminbi exchange rate, which has affected the
environment of the retail industry and the consumption sentiment. Consumer
sentiment has also turned cautious, resulting in a decline in sales of cosmetics and
fashion segments.

The Group recorded a loss of HK$79,351,000 for the year (2018: a profit of
HK$5,262,000), mainly due to the drop in sales for both cosmetics and fashion
segments of the Group as a result of the cautious consumer market and the
continuously weak retail environment. In particular, we saw a significant
decline in revenue in the second half of this financial year. During the year,
the cosmetics business recorded a segment loss of HK$52,884,000 (2018: a
loss of HK$6,083,000), and the fashion business recorded a segment loss of
HK$29,797,000 for the year (2018: a loss of HK$8,209,000). The segment
loss included scrap, shrinkage and provision for slow moving inventories of
approximately HK$17,533,000 (2018: HK$4,977,000). Besides, as the Group had
a relatively larger number of loss-making stores for the year, it was required to
make a provision for both impairment of the property, plant and equipment and the
onerous contracts of the relevant stores. As at 31st March, 2019, these provisions
in aggregate amounted to approximately HK$33,700,000. In addition, the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties recorded an appreciation of HK$21,079,000
for the year (2018: HK$31,630,000).
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Cosmetics Business

As at 31st March, 2019, the Group had 87 cosmetics stores (31st March, 2018:
92 stores), with 82 Colourmix stores and 5 MORIMOR stores respectively, of
which 80 stores were located in Hong Kong, 6 stores were located in Macau and
1 store was located in China. The Group strived to adjust its product portfolio
and improve the product display of its stores to enhance the shopping experience
of customers. At the same time, the Group provided its customers with premium
skin care consultations through professional and intimate beauty reference.
During the year, the cosmetics business recorded a revenue of HK$1,408,287,000
(2018: HK1,573,867,000), representing a decrease of 10.5%, which accounted for
83.2% of the total revenue of the Group. The gross profit margin of the cosmetics
business for the year was 31.1%, representing a decrease of 0.6 percentage point
as compared to the gross profit margin of the same period last year. During the
year, the cosmetics business recorded a segment loss of HK$52,884,000 (2018:
loss of HK$6,083,000). During the period under review, the overall environment
of the consumer market in Hong Kong and Macau continued to be sluggish. The
depreciation of the Renminbi exchange rate has weakened consumer sentiment,
resulting in a decrease in revenue. Coupled with the impairment made by the Group
in respect of the property, plant and equipment and the provision made in respect
of the onerous contracts of loss-making stores, there was an increase in segment
loss as compared to the same period last year. In view of this, in order to cope with
these uncertainties, the Group has successively closed down its cosmetics stores
with unsatisfactory performance, and opened new stores at favorable locations with
affordable rental during the year.

PREMIUM
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Fashion Business

As at 31st March, 2019, the Group had 84 fashion stores (31st March, 2018:
101 stores) under the brand Veeko and Wanko across Hong Kong, Macau and
China, with 67 stores located in Hong Kong and Macau and 17 stores located in
China. The reason for the decrease in the number of stores as compared with the
same period last year was the closing down of fashion stores with unsatisfactory
performance by the Group and the allocation of resources to profitable stores.
During the period under review, the revenue of the Group’s fashion business was
HK$285,139,000 (2018: HK$354,453,000), representing a decrease of 19.6% as
compared with the same period last year. In addition to the termination of fashion
retail operation in Singapore, the decline in revenue was due to the decrease in
the number of overall fashion stores as compared with the same period last year.
During the period under review, due to the impact arising from the relocation of
the plant in mainland China, the production schedule was delayed, and resulted in
the delay to meet the market demand timely in the first half of the financial year,
thereby leading to the decrease in revenue of the fashion segment and the increase
in production cost. Coupled with the typhoon which hit Hong Kong and Macau in
September last year, there was inevitably a decline in overall revenue. Besides,
the weather was exceptionally warm during winter in the second half of the year,
resulting in a decline in results. The Group has completed the integration process
of production plant in August last year. The production efficiency has also been
continuously improved in accordance with the Group’s plan, and the delivery
quantity resumed to normal. During the period under review, the gross profit
margin decreased by 3.3 percentage points to 66.8% as compared with the same
period last year. With the above reasons, and coupled with the impairment made by
the Group in respect of the property, plant and equipment and the provision made

in respect of the onerous contracts of loss-making stores, the Group has recorded
a loss of HK$29,797,000 (2018: loss of HK$8,209,000) for the fashion business
segment.
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Prospects

During the current financial year, the global economy has undergone fluctuations
and the retail industry faced innumerable obstacles. Under the challenging
economic environment, the Group will continue to seek opportunities for growth by
adopting contingency measures. Looking ahead, the Group will strategically adjust
its product portfolio, explore new products with more potential, increase trendy
beauty products with exclusive distributorship in a bid to cater for the changing
demands of customers and enhance competitiveness. In addition, the Group will
keep abreast of the latest market trend, strengthen the product portfolio, proactively
train up staff members, improve service quality and enhance satisfactory level of
customers. At the same time, the management will continue to maintain prudent
financial and operational management and take stringent cost control measures.
The Group will deploy resources to profitable stores by further restructuring stores
with unsatisfactory performance, which can help improve the overall performance
of cosmetics business. The Group keeps up with the trend, with the development
of information and technology, apart from the traditional physical retail stores, the
Group actively explores methods to promote the growth of its cosmetics business,
enhance the brand’s popularity, expand customer base and therefore increase
revenue through various e-commerce platforms. The Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge has started operation since October 2018. The Group sees the potential

opportunities brought by the development of the Greater Bay Area and therefore,
has established Colourmix and MORIMOR stores in the Passenger Clearance
Building of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge Hong Kong Port since the end of
April 2019.
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Prospects (Continued)

Regarding the fashion retail business, the Hong Kong and Macau market accounted
for 92.9% of the total revenue of the fashion business of the Group. The fashion
retail business will continue to focus primarily on the Hong Kong and Macau
market in the future. To look for opportunities to meet the constantly changing
demands in the market, the Group will continue to optimize its product design
portfolio; closing down its fashion stores with unsatisfactory performance. In the
meantime, the Group will also continue to open new stores at favorable locations
with affordable rental and steer the focus point of the business towards profitable
stores. The Group expects to further reduce production costs, increase gross profit
of the fashion business and control the cost of goods effectively after deploying its
production resources to its existing self-owned production plant in Shantou. With
the re-integration of production resources, the space in the existing self-owned
plant in Shantou can be utilised more effectively. The Group has leased certain
floors of its Shantou plant to earn rental income, which has brought greater returns

to the Group.
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Prospects (Continued)

The Group constantly explores investment opportunities. In March 2019, the
Group entered into a formal sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party for the acquisition of a property located at the whole of ground floor
of No. 88 San Hong Street North New Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$117,500,000. The total cost of the property together with transaction costs
such as stamp duty is approximately HK$128,458,000. The property will be held
for investment purpose by rental. Upon the expiry of the existing lease agreement,
the Group will evaluate the benefits between the property which continues to
be rented out and the property which will be used as the Group’s store. The
Group will continue to explore investment opportunities. The Group will further
diversify and expand its income sources through an increase of rental income from
property investment, which will create greater returns and long term values to the
shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Group expects to continuously face a challenging external
environment for the retail market of Hong Kong in 2019. To forge ahead, in
spite of such challenges in the future, the Group will continue to focus on its
business, formulate strategic marketing solutions, explore new markets and seize
opportunities for identifying new business opportunities as well as unlocking its
future potential.
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Liquidity & Financial Resources

The Group’s working capital decreased from HK$311,550,000 as at 31st March,
2018 to HK$225,870,000 for the year end.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank balances (mainly in
Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi) amounted to HK$56,064,000 (31st March, 2018:
HK$65,168,000). The outstanding bank borrowings (mainly in Hong Kong Dollar)
amounted to HK$265,590,000 (31st March, 2018: HK$269,206,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio was 1.61 times (31st March,
2018: 1.84 times) and the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.42 (31st March,
2018: 0.37) which was calculated based on the Group’s total borrowings of
HK$266,207,000 (31st March, 2018: HK$269,206,000) and the total equity of
HK$629,830,000 (31st March, 2018: HK$718,905,000).

At 31st March, 2019, the Group had banking facilities amounting to
HK$429,240,000 (31st March, 2018: HK$357,810,000), of which
HK$282,555,000 (31st March, 2018: HK$286,523,000) was utilised by the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases (mainly in
United States Dollar and Euro), which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 34% (2018: 22%) of purchases costs are in foreign currencies
for the year. The management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk by entering into forward
contracts should the need arises.

2019 F3f




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ETRBEE

Chairman’s Statement

EEEHA

RAREER  RAEEER —RIR
TREREMRE TIRITERBZE
/329,104,000 0 ( Z T — N\F =
A=+—8 : 259,969,000/ 7T) °

HAREE

R-ZE—AE=A=+—H ' KAQF
EARR B TH BRI ERZEITE
& AR A & TR 17 12 14 644,923,000
BT(Z2—NE=A=+—-8:
450,500,00078 70 ) Z #EAR ©

BT RFMBR

R-TE—AE=ZA=+—8  K£H
BEXLI0ZBET(ZE—N\FE=A
=+—H:#1800%) - AEBEE
BEEXENBHNETE THH - B1FR
BN B REAET o AEBEIERIBEA
REHEN—ERBFETET - BHE
AEFWEFIIN - BHEFEETEED
TRRERRHE - MERREIREEETH
EENEBR -

B

AANERREFERLC - ROREFHE
BET2BHRY  BEREEN - ¥
—EXRBAKEZEUBRR TP -
HIER REBBHIRARESE - LH
BRUBER/RAEBENKNELE
B o

EJ
BRE 3L

BE —T-NFARA-TLEH

Annual Report 2019

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the amount of assets pledged by the Group
to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group was
HK$329,104,000 (31st March, 2018: HK$259,969,000).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2019, the Company had provided guarantees of HK$644,923,000
(31st March, 2018: HK$450,500,000) to certain banks in respect of banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Staff & Remuneration Policies

At 31st March, 2019, the Group had approximately 1,700 employees (31st March,
2018: approximately 1,800). The Group mainly determines staff remuneration
(including insurance and medical benefits) in accordance with the industry’s
practices. The Group also implemented a reward scheme for its staff based on their
individual performance. In addition to their basic remuneration and welfare, some
key employees were granted share options as reward and incentive to enhance their
loyalty to the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all the
employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest gratitude
to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for their
continuous support. I sincerely hope that all of you will continue to contribute to
the success of the Group.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2019
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BEBERZERERAF

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

Review and Performance of the Year and Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future development,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators
and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” section on pages 5 to 12 of this annual
report, which constitute part of this directors’ report. The capital risk management
and financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
notes 32 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective environmental policies
to ensure its projects meet the required standards and ethics.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and
operations of the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and suppliers and business
associates are key stakeholders to the Company’s success. We strive to achieve
corporate sustainability through engaging our employees, providing quality
products and services to our customers, collaborating with business partners
(including suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality sustainable products and
services and supporting our community.

2019 F3f
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Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
56 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HKO0.2 cent per share amounting to HK$5,036,000 was
declared for the year. The amount was settled by way of cash dividend. The
directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKO.1 cent per
share amounting to HK$2,518,000 to the shareholders and the retention of the
remaining profit for the year. Upon approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM?”), the proposed final dividend will
be paid to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members as at
20th September, 2019, in cash.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders as at 31st March, 2019 comprise of share premium amounting
to HK$223,654,000 (2018: HK$214,252,000), contributed surplus amounting
to HK$53,135,000 (2018: HK$53,135,000) and retained profits amounting to
HK$6,663,000 (2018: HK$4,627,000) provided that, after the distribution, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive director

Mr. LAM Man Tin (re-designated from an independent non-executive director
to a non-executive director on 13th July, 2018)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong
(appointed on 13th July, 2018)

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Lam
Yuk Sum and Mr. Yeung Wing Kay shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which should be renewable for each term of
three years until terminated by either party by three months’ prior written notice.
The non-executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors
has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of two years.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year and up to the date of this directors’ report, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined under section 469 of the Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 of
Laws of Hong Kong (“Companies Ordinance”)), for the benefit of the directors of
the Company has been and is still in force.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (former name: Cheng Tsang Man), aged 62, is the
chairman of the Group. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board. He established the Group
in 1984 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and formulation of
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 35 years of experience in the
manufacturing and retail business. Mr. Cheng was awarded the Young Industrialist
Awards of Hongkong in November 2001 and the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur
Award of the Year 2012 China in November 2012. He is the husband of Ms. Lam
Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 59, is the chief executive officer of the Group and a
member of each of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board. She is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group, specifically
the merchandising management and design and product development. She joined
the Group in 1987 and has over 32 years of experience in fashion design and retail
business. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny.
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Non-executive director

Mr. LAM Man Tin, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 2nd February, 2016 and re-designated as a non-executive
director with effect from 13th July, 2018. He was a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board from
2nd February, 2016 to 12th July, 2018. He graduated from the University of Hull
with a master degree in strategic marketing (distance learning) in July 1996. Mr.
Lam joined Aeon Stores Co., Ltd. in 1992 and has over 20 years of experience in
retail and service industries. He was an executive director of Aeon Stores (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (“Aeon Stores HK”), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code:
984) from May 1999 to May 2012. Mr. Lam served as the managing director of
Aeon Stores HK from May 2006 to May 2012. Following his resignation from the
board of directors of Aeon Stores HK, he was engaged as a consultant of Aeon
Stores HK until September 2012. Mr. Lam has been the chief executive officer
strategist of Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 312) since September 2013.
Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee of S. Culture International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1255) from May 2013 to July 2017.
He is also the founding member of the Hong Kong Yau Yat Chuen Lions Club.

2019 F3f




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEEHRES

Directors’ Report
BYFHTES

BEBEELLE 105 M- — N\
FEA+ZHEZTABIIENTE
FE-RBNTAESSEZRELZES BF
ZEgRFTMEESGZKE - KA
—NEZEFREMERSITERSE
BEH R NWtTEF=ZAE_ZTZT
WE+—F - BBEETBRRAINEE
WEREERAR - BT A
EMPIBLIR - BBEER T EMN
F+-AZE-_ZTT)\Ft+AEBNE
EERARAR @ BEFAABRNLAEE
HEHXMZ2BEEREEXE - R=F
—RAFNBE-_ZT—RFWNA - BE
EHEOHIERS R (EB)ERAR
AE (AT REZIERERA ) (R
RFTEIER E 2 AR - BRDAER
8101) ZBIEHMITES - IRKREET
EE URFHEEEREREZES
B

EREEL 695 B ——F=
AZ+MBRARARVELIFNITE
B -WNAEETSEZRELZE D « b
ZESRIRBEEBGZKE - FFH
EERELT AL ITHERELE
R EEBLEBN - FHRENEE
rRiAgres  BETMUBKE
Bl 1% & & A B At 2 5 10 B 755 5K 81 A
URBBHERBRIHEERS 21X
AR EREIE - EE LA B0
FRITREBEZES - BEHAEN
E@MARARZBIYIENITES B
%EZEg  REZEekFMZES
KB @ ZARA—REBIFTEIRE
Mz AR (BRMHARHR : 29) °

BoKESLE  665% BE_ZTZWMF
NATEBRBERNARBIYIENITE
E-RBNAEESEREZESRED
ZEGUVERURREBZEG K
B ANESHE  YABEgR
MT(—REBSEAT)ZABA
BEAEB0FRRE - FEENEEFX
RE . FHLGRBBELEN -

Annual Report 2019

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong, aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 13th July, 2018. He is also a member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Board. He has obtained extensive experience in property leasing industry since
1970. From March 1970 to December 2004, Mr. Au-Yeung worked at Sun Hung
Kai Real Estate Agency Limited and his last position was general manager at the
leasing department. Mr. Au-Yeung worked at The Link Management Limited from
December 2004 to October 2008 and his last position was head of project leasing at
the project leasing department. Mr. Au-Yeung was an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of each of the
remuneration committee and the audit committee of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Jia Meng Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8101), from August
2015 to April 2016.

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 69, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 24th March, 2011. He is also a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board.
He holds a doctor degree in enterprise management, a master degree in business
administration and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate member of the
Institute of Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, a registered financial
planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planners in Hong Kong and in
Mainland China as well as a certified risk planner of The Institute of Crisis & Risks
Management in Hong Kong. Dr. Fok has over 40 years’ experience in banking
and management. Currently, he serves as an independent non-executive director, a
member of each of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee of Dynamic Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 29).

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive director
since 17th September, 2004. He is also the chairman of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Board. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has been a partner of
Yeung & Cheuk, a firm of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong for over 20
years. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree of
Bachelor of Social Sciences.
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Senior management

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 50, is the financial controller of the Group and also the
company secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in July 1996, Ms.
Wong worked in an international accounting firm for about four years. She holds
a bachelor degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as the Share Option Scheme set out below, during the year ended 31st
March, 2019, the Company did not have newly entered or existing equity-linked
agreements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the AGM of the Company held on 30th August, 2013, the Company
approved and adopted a share option scheme.

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in note 27

to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company during the year or outstanding under the share option scheme.
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The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the Group
and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2019:

RZERERE 2 #EEFS
RZB-N\E RZB-h%
MA-A  HEER REER =B=1-H
BROEE A i3 T % HATHE
Exercise Balance  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding
REAH TEREES fdls price at during during at
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 1.4.2018 the year the year  31.3.2019
ZE-ZHTAtA ZE-ZETAtAZ T NETAtAE 022507 14,760,000  (2,600,000) (12,160,000) -
ZE-NETARA —2-)\§TAKRA HK$0.2250
Tth October, 2013 Tth October, 2013 to Tth October, 2016 to
6th October, 2016 6th October, 2018
ZE-ZFTAtH “2-=F+AtHE “E-\F+AtRZE 022507 14,760,000  (2,600,000) - 12,160,000
- \ETARA ZEZTFTARA HK$0.2250
Tth October, 2013 Tth October, 2013 to Tth October, 2018 to
6th October, 2018 6th October, 2020
“T-REMA-TRE —E-MEMA-tRAZE  —E—tEMA-TEAZ  030008m 2120000  (200,000) - 1,920,000
“E—tEMAZTRA ZE-NEEAZTEA HKS0.3000
25th April, 2014 25th April, 2014 to 25th April, 2017 to
24th April, 2017 24th April, 2019
ZE-EEMAZTRA ZER-MEMA-TRAZ ZE-AEEAZTHEAZE 0300087T 2120000 (200,000) - 1,920,000
ZE-NEMAZTIA ZEC-FEAZTEA HKS0.3000
25th April, 2014 25th April, 2014 to 25th April, 2019 to
24th April, 2019 24th April, 2021
—2—+5-ANA “2—+#-ANBE —Z-FF-ANBZE 0.1832/8 7 3,000,000 (500,000) = 2,500,000
ZEZRE-A)\R —Z-—#-A)\R HK$0.1832
9th January, 2017 9th January, 2017 to 9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2020 8th January, 2022
ZZ—tE-ANA “2—tE-ANAE “Z-_5-ANRZE 0.183287T 3,000,000  (500,000) - 2,500,000
“E-E-ANA —“ECEE-ANA HK$0.1832
9th January, 2017 9th January, 2017 to 9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2022 8th January, 2024
39,760,000 (6,600,000) (12,160,000) 21,000,000
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At the date of this report, the total number of shares to be issued upon exercise
of the outstanding options is 19,080,000. The outstanding options represent
approximately 0.76% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this
report.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31st March, 2019, the interests of the directors and the chief executive officer
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

AARBEBIT
FRREE#T & N=R il
B EEuE ZREREAR Percentage of the
Capacity/ Number of issued issued share capital
EEHE Name of director Nature of interest ordinary shares held of the Company
BB A Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny  Bl¥#f A REFEZ 2 A 1,393,347,737
Founder and (KteE)
Beneficiary of Trust (Note)
EnEAA 185,219,227
Beneficial owner
1,578,566,964 62.69%
MEHRL L Ms. Lam Yuk Sum EFEXEA 1,393,347,737
(7TE#E %) (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficiary of Trust (Htat)
(Note)
BESBEAA 272,916,013
Beneficial owner
1,666,263,750 66.17% 21
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Note: These 1,393,347,737 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits Limited (“Silver
Crown”). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held by the trustee of The J Cheng Family Trust,
a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng
Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by
certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors and the chief executive
officer had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March, 2019, as required to be recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a director (as
defined under Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Name of shareholder

Silver Crown

Well Feel Group Limited
(“Well Feel”)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests or Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive Officer’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and other substantial shareholders’ interests disclosed in the following
table, at 31st March, 2019, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the directors and the chief executive
officer) of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company.

AATE T
FEBEERT e N
ZEREAE Percentage of the

B RERtE Number of issued  issued share capital
Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares held of the Company
ERmBEEA 1,393,347,737 55.34%
Beneficial owner

2R R (AE) 1,393,347,737 55.34%
Interest of a controlled corporation

(Note)
SREA(HTEE) 1,393,347,737 55.34%

HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC International”)

wis -

Silver Crown 2 & #B B % 17 I8 7K B3 Well Feel £
A - fWell Feel J"HSBC International Z 2 & f}
BAR - IRIEFESLREAEKAEXVIBGZR
TE * Well Feel XHSBC International & B 1 {7 1
Rz Z B Silver CrownE A a2 FTB A QAR
DHEERER -
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Trustee (Note)

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and
HSBC International was deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown

was interested.

2019 F3f




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEEHRES

Directors’ Report
TERFRAER

RAFEER  AEBRAEERHAE
MERBELAEERLARE P IEH
BIHER DRI ARERFEK
BRERBIHETEN0% -

BES  FENBEEHBALIEE
ERA EAEARRRBEBEITRMDS%
LA ER T ARER - B AR E AR
AAREF e S i -

BEBERE

ARRMAMERANXFERS
(RRBFEMALZ BVERER ) EAE
Bl - HEREARNRB VAR LHIAAR
RAREBREABEHRK -

BE - - HEFBEEAQFN L
™ & 2

RAFER » ARBHIEEFAMER
AMEBA - HEXBOEMARE]
B EMRES

B = BUSR

AEESREEABZMEBRRAH
WEzEeREREE 2RR - EEKREE
AHIET

ARAREEZHMENEFMERS2
RARBZEERE - BRREKLA
TRz TG BERAEFEER
HEE -

AAREHM—EHBRES - EA
HEERAEREEZSEERE M
BB ZFBRN G A T RERM
5F27 ©

Annual Report 2019

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and total sales for the year,
respectively.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued shares) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended to the Board by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees and details of the scheme are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2019 and up to the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the Group
after 31st March, 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2019
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company hereby presents this
Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st
March, 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2019.

The Company continues to review its corporate governance practices in order
to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the increasingly
tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries, all of the directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines™) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance

and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a director to perform
his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the director is spending
sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two executive directors,

one non-executive director and three independent non-executive directors.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at 31st March,
2019:

6 "
Female N
B
5 FNTEE
Independent
non-executive
4 directors
3 EHTEE
Non-executive
director
2
1
0
151 o)
Gender Designation

ESVEEENENAFHRII6ES
IBE [EFEEHEEJATD -

BREEXEE MM ERZ L RRFEH
BRI BB ZRMENT - %
% REXHEMER HEBE -
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15-22  — —
66-70

EE
Management

i FHa) PR B
L Length of .
Ethnicity Age Group Service Expertise

The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report.

Save that Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are husband

and wife, there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced distribution
of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the
leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective functioning
of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed
and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Company. She is responsible for implementing
the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies approved and delegated by the
Board with the assistance of the senior management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the Board and the
management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company has at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive director in respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Election

Each of the directors of the Company is engaged on a service agreement (for
executive director) or an appointment letter (for non-executive director and
independent non-executive director) for a term of 3 and 2 years respectively. The
appointment of executive director may be terminated by either party by giving
three months’ prior written notice.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meeting and any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting, as
the case may be, of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting the
success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of operating
activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board
reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the Company.
The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated
functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the
aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with
a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable request
being made to the Board.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year and additional
meetings are arranged as and when required to discuss significant issues, either in
person or by means of electronic or other communication facilities. Schedules for
annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting are sent to all directors in advance
to enable them to have an opportunity to include matters in the agenda. Notice of at
least 14 days is given of a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are
despatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting to
ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the related documents and
be adequately prepared for the meeting. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to all directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles contains provisions requiring directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to

effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the

Board remains informed and relevant.
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Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for directors would be arranged and reading materials on relevant topics would be
provided to directors where appropriate.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, two internally-facilitated briefing
sessions for directors have been arranged. Besides, according to the records
maintained by the Company, the directors also received the following trainings
during the year ended 31st March, 2019 with emphasis on their roles, functions and
duties as directors of a listed company:

3 e

EEnE Name of Directors Type of Training (¥
HITEF Executive Directors

EpSB e Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny A, B
MERZ L Ms. LAM Yuk Sum A, B
FEHITEE Non-executive Director

PRI ST A O Mr. LAM Man Tin® A, B
BIHITESE Independent Non-executive Directors

BIZES kL Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong® A
ERTELT Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John A

KBS E Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay A, B

1) M ER =T —N\ELA+=HfH
BALINTESTERTRIENTES -

2) BEEEEER=—_E—\FLtA+=H
BEERBUFENTES -

iz -
EHIER

A HIEIEFIRTE - BFEETRIER - 7
g BiEHERTIEY

B: BIEIGRFT B Z A - R= - B7 - Adar
RAIGETIY
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(1) Mr. LAM Man Tin was re-designated from an independent non-executive director to a non-
executive director with effect from 13th July, 2018.

2) Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong was appointed as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 13th July, 2018.

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and
workshops
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications
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All the directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of all three committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

All members of the Audit Committee while the majority of the members of each
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this annual
report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of all directors of the Company except
Mr. Lam Man Tin, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of all directors and senior management remuneration and on the remuneration
packages of all directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st
March, 2019. During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following work: (i) reviewing the bonus payment to directors and senior
management; (ii) reviewing the salary increment policy for all directors and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and recommending to the Board regarding the
remuneration package of the newly appointed independent non-executive director,
and (iv) reviewing and recommending to the Board the remuneration package of
the director who was re-designated from an independent non-executive director to
a non-executive director.

Senior Management’s Emoluments
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the remuneration of

the members of the senior management (other than directors) by band for the year
ended 31st March, 2019 are as follows:

EEA™

Number of employee(s)

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

Details of the remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31st March,
2019 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of all directors of the Company except
Mr. Lam Man Tin, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning for directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.
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The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size and composition
of the Board and where appropriate, make relevant recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. In assessing the Board
composition and identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects set out in the
Board Diversity Policy to implement the corporate strategy of the Company. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings to adopt the Nomination Policy, to recommend to the Board on
the appointment of independent non-executive director, and re-designation of
director, to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the annual general
meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse
profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also committed to
ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board
downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates are
considered.
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The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently
diverse and effective to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the selection
criteria and process and the Board succession planning considerations in relation
to nomination and appointment of directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not
limited to the following:

o age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and educational
qualifications, background, and other personal qualities of the candidates;

. effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

. commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively carry
out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices held by
the candidate in public companies or organisations, and other executive
appointments or significant commitments will be considered;
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. potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is
selected;

. independence of the candidate;

. in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an independent non-executive

director, the number of years he/she has already served; and

. other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee on a
case by case.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general meetings.
During the year ended 31st March, 2019, there were changes in the composition
of the Board and the Nomination Committee has followed the procedures in the
Nomination Policy in this regard.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-executive directors
with the chairman of which possesses the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting expertise. None of the committee members is a former partner of
the Company’s external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are: to oversee the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor; to review the financial information; to
oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and to review the effectiveness of the internal audit function,
arrangements to enable employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Audit Committee held six meetings of
which the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer attended five of
these meetings. A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year was as follows:

@) reviewed and commented on audited annual results for the year ended 31st
March, 2018 and unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30th
September, 2018 respectively;

(i) reviewed the business performance for the three months ended 30th June,
2018 and nine months ended 31st December, 2018;
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(iii)  reviewed the scope of audit work, auditors’ remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommending re-appointment of auditor;

(iv)  reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of financial reporting and internal
control including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group;

(v) reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for 2018/2019; and

(vi)  reviewed the questionnaires issued by the Audit Committee and answered
by the executive directors.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the reports on the latest progress of internal
audit assignments and enterprise risk management project.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the presence of the
executive directors and the management.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2019 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding
the appointment and re-election of the external auditor.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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EERZEEERE I HERSE  ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

BEESHREARAREBE_Z—NF The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board Committee
AT RLEFERITZEETER meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31st
EEZEESRARBRRRE 2HE March, 2019 are set out in the table below:

RLERTIM TR ¢

HERY, SERH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRREFEAE
¥MEzEEE REEEE ENRZEEE Annual
EZES Remuneration  Nomination Audit General
EENRE Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
B EE Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 18/18 4/4 212 N/A il
MERZ L Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 18/18 4/4 22 N/A 11
IHTEE Non-executive Director
M ERE A Mr. LAM Man Tin" 8/18 1/1 1/1 12 171
B IHTTEZE  Independent Non-executive Directors
BlES%E®  Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong® 6/13 3/3 1/1 4/4 1/1
EREEL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 9/18 3/4 22 6/6 1/1
WK ELE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 9/18 4/4 2/2 6/6 1/1
(1) MXBEER—T—\FLA+=HA (1) Mr. LAM Man Tin was re-designated from an independent non-executive director to a non-
BUIEATEFERERENTES - executive director with effect from 13th July, 2018.
2) BEEERER—_T—\FLA+=H ) Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong was appointed as an independent non-executive director with
BRERBULIFNTES - effect from 13th July, 2018.

BrEMZESEEEREIN - EFTNFERN  Besides the above—mentioned Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
ERTEERFATESTHFE BN with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of executive
TELBFENITEEHEIT T —IKE  director and non-executive director during the year.
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=
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and
ensure that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 46 to 55 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31st March, 2019 is set out below:

B/ ENER

Category of Services Fee Paid/Payable

FHET

HK$’000

Audit Service 1,855
Non-audit Services

— Tax service 175

— Other professional services 194

TOTAL 2,224
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Objective and Purpose

Enterprise risk management is fundamental and essential to the achievement of
the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board of Directors and the management are
responsible for identifying and analyzing the risks underlying the achievement of
business objectives, and for determining how such risks should be managed and
mitigated. The Board oversees the Group’s potential risks and their respective
mitigation strategies and ensures risk management effectiveness. The Board
ensures that the Group has established and maintained a proper and effective risk
management and internal control systems, as well as reviewing the effectiveness
of the system. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives during the Group’s
business operation.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses on an annual basis the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance, as
well as considers the sufficiency of budget with respect to resources, employees’
capabilities and experience, training courses and the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. Significant issues from internal audit department,
external professional consultants and management letters from external auditor are
brought to the attention of the Audit Committee to ensure that prompt remedial
action is taken. All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they
are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department to handle the internal audit
function. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and the review result is satisfactory.
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Risk Management Framework and Major Tasks

The management of daily operations of the Company’s business departments is
based on the Company’s corporate risk management framework. The corporate
risk management framework addresses four risk categories, including strategic,
financial, operation and compliance risks.

There is Risk Management Taskforce (“RMT”) which seek to monitor the risks of
the Group. The RMT was made up of members of senior management, who reports
to the Board of Directors on matters of significance that arise. The RMT reports
via the Audit Committee to the Board. The RMT oversees the risk owners, who
are responsible for inventory management, information technology, marketing and
operation, etc. The risk owners reported to the RMT their involved risks and the
planned measures to mitigate those risks.

. During the current year, the RMT held three meetings.

. The meetings involved the discussion of the existing risks and measures to
mitigate those risks and the RMT have re-assessed the top 10 priority risks
of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31st March, 2019. The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as
well as the management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31st March, 2019, and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experience and relevant
resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.
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For the handling and dissemination of inside information, a Disclosure Policy has
been adopted by the Board since August 2013 with an aim to provide a general
guide to the directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees of the
Company in handling of confidential information and/or monitoring of information
disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

The control procedures were stated and identified in the Disclosure Policy. The
Company has procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage
actual or potential conflicts of interest. The Company has an Internal Audit
Department to handle the internal audit functions, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and also reports
the matters concerning internal control of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2019 to the Audit Committee during its regular meetings.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Chi Ying, the financial controller of the Group, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 1999. Ms. Wong complied with the qualification
and training requirements under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue in general meetings, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward in general meetings are taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the poll results are posted on the websites of the Company and of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited after each general meeting. Detailed procedures
for conducting a poll are also explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings pursuant to article 64 of
the Company’s Articles. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Company
Secretary, stating the business to be transacted, and signed by the requisitionist(s).
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Company’s Articles.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles or the Cayman Islands
Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” which is posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: ~ The Company normally will not deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the

following:

Address: 10/F., Wyler Centre Phase II, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2310 9017

Email: contact@veeko.com.hk

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in particular,
their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely and effective

communication.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

Communications with shareholders and investors

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general
public on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and other corporate communications.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the Group, and
encourages their attendance at general meetings to communicate any concerns they
may have with the Board or management directly. The Company’s annual general
meeting is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholders’ attendance at its annual general meeting, the Company gives at least
20 clear business days’ prior notice together with a detailed agenda. The Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each Board committees (or their delegates) are
available to answer questions at general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s structure, board of directors,

announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

Constitutional document

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s Articles. An

up-to-date version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends. The
Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions and factors
as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by
the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 56 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March, 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

RIEBRGFERB 2 ERARETFE  REARE
EFERER - EEEFEHBRRETSRES G TR
ESE

We have identified the assessment of the allowance for
inventories as a key audit matter because of the inherent
estimation uncertainty within the assumptions made by
management when determining the allowance for inventories.

BANERE SRR T4 RIS HE R E—NF=A
=+—BEEZHREEGNREEE10,622,00087T) B
432,792,0007% 7T °

As disclosed in notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of inventories (net of
allowance of HK$10,622,000) is HK$432,792,000 as at 31st
March, 2019.
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AITHERERFERBZAHEBEIEFEYE
Our procedures in relation to management’s estimate of the
allowance for inventories included:

. THREEEETREMAZEENER

. Obtaining an understanding of the basis used to
determine the allowance and the information used by
management to determine the allowance;

. REBAXH(BREEMREE) MENEHMAZER
BRI DT 2 FEREE
. Testing the accuracy of the information used such as

the inventory ageing analysis, on a sample basis, to
supporting documents including goods receipt notes;

. AAEEEECTEREBMACEEZ SRR -
REEFEEEENMIA 2 HRESR

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the basis used
by management to determine the allowance for
inventories and reperforming the underlying
calculations used in the management’s assessment;

. HFEACERSEMAL  AFBEMAREE
W BUFEEREEMAEEZAEREE &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the basis used by
management by examining the historical accuracy
of the estimated allowance compared to the actual
amount incurred; and
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Management has determined the allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items at the end of reporting period
with reference to the inventory ageing analysis, expected
market conditions and by comparing the carrying amount
of inventories with their estimated net realisable values,
primarily based on the latest selling prices.

. MEAFRCREFHERRMBGTECROBER
TR e - L ERERFENZRFEMERZ
BEEE -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the inventories
by comparing the amounts, on a sample basis, to the
latest selling prices of the inventories as set out in
sales invoices.

RTEBS BEEERRRENTEEHIERESLOE
BRARETEE REANEECTEEHESAURRAE
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We have identified the provision for onerous contracts of the
Group’s underperforming retail stores as a key audit matter
due to the inherent estimation uncertainty pertaining to the
assumptions and estimation required in determining the
discounted cash flow forecasts (the “Forecasts”) for all of
the retail stores with non-cancellable clause in the respective
lease agreements to the end of the non-cancellable lease
period when determining whether there is any indication of
retail stores underperforming and assessing the provision for
onerous contracts.
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AT BEEERBERENZTEEHZBREUESHERFGZ
RFER:

Our procedures in relation to the provision for onerous
contracts of the Group’s underperforming retail stores
included:

. TREEEREEN(BREARELMAE) ISR
COEEIS S e

. Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
process and basis adopted in preparing the Forecasts,
including significant assumptions and estimation;

. A B IR BT AT MR BN S R AR R AR - I
EREETARENHEERER < N enHEE
R - BEAEEES R ELR

. Evaluating the management’s estimation of economic
benefits and unavoidable costs and checking the
clause of unavoidable lease payments until expiry of
the non-cancellable lease terms against the relevant
tenancy agreement terms;
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As disclosed in notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, a provision for onerous contracts of
HK$31,503,000 has been recognised as at 31st March,
2019. Based on the results of the Forecasts prepared by
management, the Group makes provision for onerous contracts
for all underperforming retail stores of the cosmetics and
fashion businesses. The provision was determined based
on the Forecasts which involve certain key assumptions
and estimation. Management judgement is required to
identify those retail stores requiring provision, including the
determination of unavoidable costs and economic benefits
from operating those retail stores to the end of the non-
cancellable lease period. Key assumptions made in the
Forecasts include estimates of revenue growth, gross profit
margins and unavoidable costs that will be incurred during
the remaining non-cancellable lease period.
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Evaluating the assumptions and estimation made in
the Forecasts in determining whether there is any
indication of retail stores underperforming and the
provision based on the management’s estimate of
revenue growth, gross profit margins and unavoidable
costs that will be incurred during the remaining lease
term, with reference to the past performance of the
relevant retail stores, management’s expectations on
the market development and the future operating plans
of the Group; and

RARBRETBRRESN - LERBY Exli%
BRENZTEERNERESNBREIEENTE
REGHBREERERANEMNIR -

Performing sensitivity analysis of key assumption and
considering the resulting impact on the provision for
onerous contracts of the Group’s underperforming
retail stores and whether there were any indicators of
management bias.
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated statement of financial position as a whole,
combined with the inherent subjectivity within judgements
and assumptions made when determining the fair value of the
investment properties.

BRE M BHRRMTARIBAAKE - BEXEREME
RZZBE-AF=RA=+—H 22 FEEE186,095000%
T MREWHERFEE 721,079,000/ T E R ELE %
HIEFEzGEEa A2 EBARARER

As disclosed in notes 4 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties amounted to HK$186,095,000 as at 31st March,
2019 with an increase in fair value of investment properties
of HK$21,079,000 recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
then ended.
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RITHREM XA EEBZIEFEHE
Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

. TREEBEZEF  SREGEMAREEEREMEZ
PR R AEMEEN 2 T28UR

. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process
including establishment of the valuation techniques
used and the key inputs into the valuation model by
the Valuers and management;

. AL fAEMZEE - B hRFEIM
. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

. AHERTHEE < MERM IS EEMAAEE R FE
ENEI2RABBERBRRZAEEE

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
techniques established and the reasonableness of
the key inputs and assumptions to determine the fair
value;
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The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31st March, 2019 is determined based on valuations carried
out on that date by independent qualified professional
valuers (the “Valuers”). The valuations are dependent on the
establishment of the valuation technique and key inputs to
the model that involves judgement made by the management.
In determining the fair value of parking spaces, the Valuers
consider the key inputs including market observable
transactions of similar properties and taking into account of
the differences in the location and condition of the investment
properties under direct comparison approach. In determining
the fair value of the commercial property and industrial
properties, the Valuers consider the key inputs including
capitalisation rate and monthly market rent per square foot/

meter under income capitalisation approach.
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Comparing a selection of relevant market observable
transactions of similar properties within comparable
locations obtained from information independently
and publically available sources; and
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Comparing to relevant market information about
the monthly market rent per square foot/meter
and capitalisation rates obtained from information

independently and publically available sources.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

2019 F3f

53



VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B AR ES

Independent Auditor’s Report

. HESRA/ELLE AR
ZIRE ML R o BRI
B2 EEE URERRF
ERFEELBENEBZIEAT
REEM - tMAEEHY &
SEZHELERNELERN
SR o MATTRA/TFEERT
FEENE - RIB & R R B
TRRBEREIESFEYE
WRPZEBKE  REBMH
ZEETR - AIATEEEBR
BR - NMIZ2 R EENZH
B & B LA 2 |BAHE
7& o R - RIRFEKIFRA

EEY BEEETHRIBEAEL

Dﬂk o>

o

. HEGREMBRRZERS
5 RERAT(BEEEE
) AERGEEMBHRRES
TERBERR S MER -

. P EREANEBHEBED
ZHBEEHESTE  HEZ
FiERE - UEEEE MR
RERER - ATRAE B
BER 27 - BT o
RIOIRBFABERAEEZRE
e

RITEBBERABBBE 258
HENMSEARBEARTHERE &
BATEEF TR HAMEEZE
[BEF NN

AITTMABRERABRRER » &
ARTTENABRBIL EZHEER
3k WHEREEBB IR BB
RBEFEATELIEZ MBEREM
Hip =18 - A K AB RN 64 i (38
) e

Annual Report 2019

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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MEBEEARAEABIETET - /&K From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
THEEZEH ARG A EIKHERZE those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
SAmAEEEE AMEKREEZE  financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
SPEIE - RITEZEBMIMEFPEIEZ  We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
EEE - BRIEERIERTATFARA public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
WEELEE » JAERKER 21BN determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
T WMEEBEEARTREFREBE  adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
EHERZBEBRBBESZ/AF  public interest benefits of such communication.

M NTAETEERSE R BEBZX

£IFH °

HEARB T HEhRE 23T JEH S The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report
BABERF - is Wong Kit Sum.

= . BERS ST Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

HEDEAD Certified Public Accountants

'S - NEFAZ++tH Hong Kong, 27th June, 2019
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other income, gains and losses

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax expense

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of properties

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

(Loss) earnings per share
— basic

— diluted

colourmix &

2019 2018
BtaF FHERT FHIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
5 1,693,426 1,928,320
(1,065,060) (1,180,315)
628,366 748,005
(582,745) (655,044)
(108,562) (114,588)
(20,098) 5,837
21,079 31,630
6 9,057) (6,560)
(71,017) 9,280
7 (8,334) (4,018)
8 (79,351) 5,262
4,193 8,738
(6,774) 7,207
(2,581) 15,945
(81,932) 21,207
AL AL
HK cents HK cent
12
3.196) 0.219
3.196) 0.219
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31st March, 2019

MORIMOR O

2019 2018
Hiat FET FHTT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
EMBEE Non-current Assets
REE Investment properties 13 186,095 157,801
EXE - MENMEE Property, plant and equipment 14 167,525 191,246
A EEFKIE Prepaid lease payments 15 4,351 5,514
EfNEeRe Rental deposits paid 40,679 54,185
g s g/EAmANE & Deposits paid for acquisition of
investment property 13 21,739
IEERI T A E Deferred tax assets 17 5,089 6,451
425,478 415,197
MENVE E Current Assets
=8 Inventories 18 432,792 498,522
FEWE 55 IE K Trade and other receivables
HoAth FE U FRIR 19 40,057 53,293
TEfHEEHKIE Prepaid lease payments 15 171 254
BN E MKEIRE Rental and utility deposits paid 58,801 56,230
Al [B]l 2 Fi 1A Tax recoverable 9,488 9,897
RITHEE  FREERE Bank balances, deposits and cash 20 56,064 65,168
597,373 683,364
mEBRE Current Liabilities
B E S HER Trade and other payables
Ho At JE A FRIR 21 80,142 101,056
B SEe Rental deposits received 874 27
BEAIRITEE Secured bank borrowings 22 265,590 269,206
RE T EAGE Obligations under finance lease 23 224 =
B Provision 16 22,406
FERTFR IR Tax payable 2,267 1,525
371,503 371,814
MEEEFE Net Current Assets 225,870 311,550
651,348 726,747
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T—h&F=A=+—8 At 31st March, 2019
2019 2018
Bfa FET FHTT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B R Capital and Reserves
N Share capital 24 25,180 24,575
i Reserves 604,650 694,330
629,830 718,905
JEnRBAaE Non-current Liabilities
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 17 11,311 6,533
RhETHEAE Obligations under finance lease 23 393 =
B Provision 16 9,097 =
BlkHeize Rental deposits received 717 1,309
21,518 7,842
651,348 726,747

EExgtR=-T-NAF A=+ +tH The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 155 were approved and
BOE R NES6EEISSEMA  authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27th June, 2019 and are signed on
G BwEK - WHTIALTREKE  its behalf by:

2.

e Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
BRE 3L Chairman

EF Lam Yuk Sum

MEHK Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z-NF=A=t+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019

NEEH
it ERERS
R&  ROEE  Poperty EXRE KHEE EERE  Shwe EEER
Share Share revaluation Translation Special ~ Statutory option  Retained S
capitall  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total
TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEx
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

RZE-tFMA-A At Ist April, 2017 213 1,925 465,844 699,447
NEERT Profit for the year = = 5,62 562
REREMRERA Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 15,945
FEEE2ANA Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 5,262 21,207
ARALEE 2 Rt Recognition of equity-settled
RERZER share-based payments . 304 _ 304
B B Share options cancelled - (123) 123 -
ER Transfer 48 = (48) =
RENR LIRS Wit Dividends recognised as
distribution (Note 11)
5% - cash - - (2,053) (2,053)
—-IRRE - scrip alternative = = (9,891) =
et Sub-total 48 181 (11,369) (1,749)
RZ2-N\E=A=1-H At 315t March, 2018 21 2106 459237 718905
TEEEE Loss for the year S - (19351 (19.350)
REEEMZEARAFR) Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - - (2,581)
TERAZENA(RER) Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - (79.351)  (81,932)
BARAGE 2RI Recognition of equity-settled
BERER share-based payments = 174 = 174
B/ ERE Share options lapsed/cancelled - (1,026) 1,026 -
B -HNELARRR Released upon dissolution
of a subsidiary (237) - 237 -
BB RZRE(Wit1l) Dividends recognised as
distribution (Note 11)
-5é -cash - - (7317) (7317)
—-IRRE -~ scrip alternative = - (10,007) =
et Sub-total (237) (852)  (16,061) (7,143)
RZE-nE=A=1-H At 315t March, 2019 U 1254 363825 629830

59

2019 F#R
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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(a)

(b)

HR—ANANEEEEA -
Veeko Holdings Limited A% 7
E{EERARR B EITIERKER
BRBRAEENZRE &

Veeko Holdings Limited A&
EEAREANB QRN - %
EME QAR & E R
Veeko Holdings Limited31T
ERKERENRAEENZ
B o

SENEAEFBERETIMEZR

e

(a)

(b)
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Annual Report 2019

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
The special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of:

(a) the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko
Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from the group
reorganisation in 1999; and

(b) the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko Holdings Limited prior
to the group reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital issued
by Veeko Holdings Limited as consideration for the acquisition.

The statutory reserves of the Group comprise the aggregate of:

(a) non-distributable reserves set aside by the Macau subsidiaries in
accordance with relevant statutory requirements; and

(b) reserves required by the relevant laws of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiary and are
appropriated at directors’ discretion, which are complied with Articles of
Association of the PRC subsidiary.

colourmnixg  MoriMor O (0k0' Wanko
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z—NF=-A=1+—HILFE

RExY
BRBi A (B 1R) ) A
SLTFIRE A%

FEHE  BRMERGTECRE

BNHEF RS E

e

BEKA
REMENFEEL
MEHA

HEEX  BERREEBR
BREAORE

EX  BELREZREEBR

B RER 2 BNRAX

BEERRPAILERY
Reng

FERD

FEUE 5508 R At i
IR (1B 10)

BENEEKEZERD

BN E SRR A ER
SRR A )0

B EEEM

REXBREL A
ENEBNEH
E A RAER 2 BN BIR

RECEERNESFE

REXK

KBREMEENES
BEEX  BELRHE
HEEX  BERRME

BEHFE
BUREE R RITE

RREEXBNESFE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Scrap, shrinkage and provision for slow moving
inventories
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation
Finance costs
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for onerous contracts
Impairment loss in respect of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables

Decrease in rental and utility deposits paid
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables

Increase in rental deposits received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Tax paid in other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Deposits paid for acquisition of investment property

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2019 2018
TAERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(71,017) 9,280
17,533 4977
176 240
28,991 33,739
9,057 6,560
(21,079) (31,630)
(62) (182)

89 742
31,503 -
2,197 -
174 304
(2,438) 24,030
48,197 2,619
7,972 (8,677)
10,912 12,522
(19,483) 3,198
294 1,308
45,454 35,000
(444) @11)
(1,810) (2,960)
43,200 31,829
(21,739) -
(8,397) (15,979)
227 703

62 182

- 5,843
(29,847) 9,251)

2019 F3f
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-T-NF=A=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2019

2019 2018
TER TET
HK$000 HK$°000
A& G FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BREODER Repayment of import loans (412,496) (405,013)
HBHITER Repayment of bank loans (65,540) (82,757)
ERRE Dividends paid (7,317) (2,053)
RITIEENE A S Interest paid on bank borrowings (9,028) (6,558)
HERMEHERE Repayment of obligation under a finance lease (56) -
FEEOER New import loans raised 401,420 391,144
FERITER New bank loans raised 73,000 65,700
ARBEEENRSFE NET CASH USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (20,017) (39,537)
ReRREEEEA NET DECREASE IN CASH
RO FE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (6,664) (16,959)
FINEERBEEEEEA CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 65,168 80,269
HEEXSB o HE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES (2,440) 1,858
FANRERREEEEA CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR
ENSRITHESR - B RS Represented by bank balances, deposits and cash 56,064 65,168

colourNmMixe MORIMOR O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—NF=-A=1+—HILFE

1. —®EHR

AARIRAERSTMKIAZHE
ERAF] EROEBEBBERS
FRERAB([BEEZFT]) £ AR
AEZRREERERLQ R RSilver
Crown Profits Limited * 522 7] AH T
BEZBFESEIMHLHAF » &K
FIHSBC International Trustee Limited
fXZThe J Cheng Family TrustiF4& o
RARZEMPERE &= EE 5 ME
RAER [ REIER |FHE -

ARAB—RBREZERRR  HE &
BB ARz = BERBENM L

RAEVBHRRARR B 2 EEE
TLAfE -

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
1. General

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors of the Company consider the direct
holding company is Silver Crown Profits Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited for The J] Cheng Family Trust. The addresses of the registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
(“HK$”) which is also the functional currency of the Company.

colourmixes MoriMor O  V0CK)  Wanko 2019 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Annual Report 2019

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to Hong Kong As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

Accounting Standards 2014-2016 Cycle
(“HKAS”) 28

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

colourmnixg  MoriMor O (0k0' Wanko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

2.1  HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS 15
superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1st April, 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits (or other components of equity, as appropriate)
and comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance
with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at 1st April,
2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from sale of cosmetics and ladies fashion at a point
in time when the control of goods is transferred to the customers.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3,
respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
The adoption of HKFRS 15 had no material effects to the amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position at Ist April, 2018

and 31st March, 2019 nor its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the current year.

2019 F3f
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and (3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set
out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1st April, 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1st April, 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31st March, 2018
and carrying amounts as at 1st April, 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

(a)  Classification and measurement of financial assets

The application of HKFRS 9 on 1st April, 2018 has no impact on the
consolidated financial position of the Group with regard to classification
and measurement of financial instruments. All financial assets classified as
loans and receivables and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
under HKAS 39 continued to be measured at amortised cost under HKFRS
9.

colourmixe MoriMor O VeCK)  Wanko
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

2.

Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

2.2

(b)

2.3

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related amendments
(Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. ECL for trade
receivables are assessed individually for each debtor.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including bank balances
and deposits and other receivables, are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) basis as there had been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 1st April, 2018, the directors of the Company have reviewed and
assessed the Group’s existing financial assets for impairment based on
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort in accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 9 and have
concluded that no material financial impact exists and therefore no
adjustment to the opening retained profits at 1st April, 2018 has been
recognised.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment property
necessitates an assessment of whether a property meets, or has ceased to
meet, the definition of investment property, supported by evidence that a
change in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that situations
other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and
that a change in use is possible for properties under construction (i.e. a
change in use is not limited to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the classification of
certain properties based on conditions existing at that date.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretation that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKERS 16

HKEFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS §

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'
Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement"

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after Ist January, 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires
sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted
as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flow by
the Group, while upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as
investing or operating cash flows in accordance with the nature as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related finance
lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a leasee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they are owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Furthermore, extensive disclosure are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31st March, 2019, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable operating
lease commitment of HK$408,963,000 as disclosed in note 25. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
HK$86,481,000 and refundable rental deposits received of HK$1,591,000 as rights
and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease payments and included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
received would be considered as advance lease payments.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretation in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The application of new requirements would result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group elects the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4.
Therefore, the Group would not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a
lease which already existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group elects the modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16
as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to opening
retained profits without restating comparative information.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for investment properties that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted
for and presented on a net basis.

Income from sales of cosmetics and ladies fashion

For revenue from sale of cosmetics and ladies fashion in which control of the
goods are transferred to customers at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the customers accept the goods and the Group has present right to payment and
collection of the consideration is probable.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1st April, 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and titles
have passed.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1st April, 2018) (Continued)

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance, from properties under
operating leases, is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair value. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified
and accounted for as investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

If an item of investment property becomes a property, plant and equipment because
its use has changed as evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the
carrying amount of that item at the date of transfer is recognised as the cost of
property, plant and equipment.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods and services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or deemed cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in “property
revaluation reserve”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in
profit or loss.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under finance lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured
as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except
for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1st April, 2018. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, bank
balances and deposits and utility deposit paid). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on trade
receivables are assessed individually for each debtor.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increase in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s

external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;
. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,

economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

@) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1st April, 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
utility deposits paid and bank balances, deposits and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st April,
2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and principal

payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st April,
2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and secured bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the

carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

2019 F#R




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

e IS ERRM

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= t—HLFRE
%ﬁﬁ&%(ﬁ)

@i:?*h
3.

S

ERmEEE R RERN 2 FBHKE -
BERRRWMREEE NI G (HINE)
RBTIAXZERER 2 ERBEA
B o RAERR - INETIEZE
KEEEZAERACEXREHHRE
BRFEEIIERRANESHEZIFE
BREREEATEEER ZBRE
REHHRE - UINEELRAFHEZ
FEHRBATEENBRE -

AEEEBHA MENBREERIAR
MELZELZRIREEREAR
Bamh R - ERKEEN '
Xz ERERELEZRE E%,\\quilJ
B BAEGBEZAIREMETRTK
RBINRBREFBR L — 87 jtﬁA
Hoh 2 T YA AR DR RR R i H B
ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%$$§2ﬁéﬁnﬁ%m%§§%ﬁ

DREREERI -

REFGEMBRERME - AREE
IR EERRBNREREHR
ERZEXRBER/ARE 2T
(A7) - WARFXERB AR
FHEXBE  BRIFEXREALR
RIEKE  HUBERT @ RIERRS
BEHERZEE MELZERLZRE
(2B N E s 2 A AP AR I A 4
SR ESFHEE TR -

Annual Report 2019

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “(loss) profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general principles set out
in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Retirement benefits costs and termination benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Group
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when it
recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All

short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees of the group entities
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value
of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 27.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees of the group entities (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at the
grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited/cancelled after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations
(see below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that:

@) the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of
its investment properties.

(i) the Group's investment properties located in the PRC are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties located in the PRC, the directors of the Company have
determined whether the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred
tax on changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner
in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting period to recover the
carrying amount of the investment properties.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable values. Management has
determined the allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory items at the
end of reporting period with reference to the inventory ageing analysis, expected
market conditions, and by comparing the carrying amount of inventories with
their estimated net realisable values, primarily based on the latest selling prices.
When estimating the net realisable values of the inventories, significant degree
of management judgement, assumptions and estimation are applied. When the net
realisable values of the inventories are lower than expectation, further allowance
may arise. As at 31st March, 2019, the carrying amount of inventories (net of
allowance of HK$10,622,000 (2018: HK$8,301,000) is HK$432,792,000 (2018:
HK$498,522,000).

Provision for onerous contracts of the Group’s underperforming retail
stores

The Group makes provision for onerous contracts based on assessment of the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the lease agreement exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it from certain underperforming
retail stores of the cosmetics and fashion business. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower
of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure
to fulfill it. The management had reviewed the discounted cash flow forecasts
for all of the retail stores with non-cancellable clause in the respective lease
agreements to the end of the non-cancellable lease period to determine whether
there is any indication of retail stores underperforming. The provision for onerous
contracts is calculated based on discounted cash flow forecasts of the Group’s
all underperforming retail stores to the end of the non-cancellable lease period.
Estimating these future losses involves a number of assumptions and estimation
include revenue growth, gross profit margins and unavoidable costs that will be
incurred during the remaining non-cancellable lease period. As at 31st March,
2019, provision for onerous contracts was HK$31,503,000 (2018: Nil).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period based on valuations performed by independent qualified
professional valuers engaged by the Group. Management works closely with the
valuers and exercises judgement to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and key inputs to the model. In determining the fair values of parking spaces, the
valuer considers the key inputs including market observable transactions of similar
properties and taking into account of the differences in the location and condition
of the investment properties under direct comparison approach. In determining the
fair value of the commercial property and industrial properties, the valuer considers
the key inputs including capitalisation rate and monthly market rent per square
foot/meter under income capitalisation approach. As at 31st March, 2019, the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties amounted to HK$186,095,000 (2018:
HK$157,801,000).

The management is satisfied that the valuations reflect the current market
conditions. Details of the carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties are
disclosed in Note 13.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These carrying amounts are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The review comprises a comparison of
the carrying amount and recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment.
Where the actual future cash flows or fair value less costs to sell are less or
more than expected, or unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances which
result in downward revision of the estimated future cash flows for the purpose of
determining the value in use, impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March, 2019,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is HK$167,525,000 (2018:
HK$191,246,000). During the year ended 31st March, 2019, an impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment of HK$2,197,000 (2018: Nil) was recognised in
profit or loss.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL for the trade receivables
individually based on internal credit rating. Estimated loss rates used in the
assessment are based on the Group’s historical default rates for each debtor
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking

information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 33(b).
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BE-Z—NF=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
5. EXEERkIEER 5. Revenue and Segment Information

BE-—ZE—h&E=A=1+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2019

PIRKBEFENZWA Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
btk m K5t et
Cosmetics Fashion Total
FHERT FHET FTHET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Em¥Esl Types of goods
SHE LA Sale of cosmetics 1,408,287 - 1,408,287
gLENIHE Manufacture and sale of
pean = ladies fashion = 285,139 285,139
st Total 1,408,287 285,139 1,693,426
W\ 7 R B B Timing of revenue recognition
TR —FE A point in time 1,408,287 285,139 1,693,426
hETE Geographical markets
BB FOR Hong Kong and Macau 1,403,322 264,882 1,668,204
AR 7 E At & Other regions of the PRC 4,965 20,257 25,222
BET Total 1,408,287 285,139 1,693,426

AEEBBEALETEER BB
EltumhkZXERETRHENENIE
BHETEP °

A ETSBEELTREmRS - K
ARERIEHEEZERER - e
EREZ I EEA R E MR (RFT) °
RRF1& - LA 2B RED
HEHARLEERMER REEE
mEAEFEECTAEERRER
B RIEARER - EREEHARN
BEI0KRE120K ©

RATEFP HEkm R
ms WAREmNIZFHEERE
(AEFPREEEBEERNRREE)
ER - RZENNRENREEETFPE
BEmmKRRIRESAT o
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The Group sells cosmetics products and ladies fashion to the wholesale market and
directly to customers both through its own retail shops and through internet sales.

For sales of ladies fashion to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to
the wholesaler’s specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 60 to 120
days upon delivery.

For sales of cosmetics products and ladies fashion to retail customers, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the goods at the retail shops. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

There are no transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period.

(a) Operating segments

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered.
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group as identified by the chief operating decision makers.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are
Cosmetics and Fashion, of which principal activities are as follows:

Cosmetics — Sale of cosmetics
Fashion — Manufacture and sale of ladies fashion
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BE-_ZT-NAE=A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
5. HEEIRIEER(E) 5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(a) BELE(E) (a) Operating segments (Continued)
DHEERER XA SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
AR AR &8 RREnEE D The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
REBZ EEBNEEDN - operating and reportable segments.
BE-_Z—NF=A=+—H For the year ended 31st March, 2019
LEE
PRtk
L[#:¢ 533 Segment Y =N
Cosmetics Fashion Total Eliminations Consolidated

TER TRR TRR TER TR
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000

=E 2 REVENUE
HANHE External sales 1,408,287 285,139 1,693,426 - 1,693,426
DM HE Inter-segment sales - 165 165 (165) -
1,408,287 285,304 1,693,591 (165) 1,693,426
2EER SEGMENT LOSS (52,884) (29,797) (82,681) = (82,681)
REMENTEELF Increase in fair value of
investment properties 21,079
A - s REE Other income, gains and losses 5,951
HRITHE A Central administration costs (6,309)
BERA Finance costs 9,057)
B RTER Loss before tax (71,017)
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HE-Z-NF=A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
5. HEEIRIEER(E) 5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(a) BELE(E) (a) Operating segments (Continued)
PHEEEBREB(E) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)
g#x—_2-\f=A=t+—-AH For the year ended 31st March, 2018
LEE
DEBE
etk S Segment i oLy
Cosmetics Fashion Total Eliminations Consolidated

TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 ~ HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000

eSS REVENUE
HIMEE External sales 1,573,867 354,453 1,928,320 - 1,928,320
DM HEE Inter-segment sales = 287 287 (287) =
1,573,867 354,740 1,928,607 (287) 1,928,320

PRER SEGMENT LOSS (6,083) (8,209) (14,292) - (14,292)
REMEATEELA Increase in fair value of

investment properties 31,630
HEaA - W kAR Other income, gains and losses 4,056
FRITERE R Central administration costs (5,554)
REKAK Finance costs (6,560)
BR 15 AT A Profit before tax 9.280
R EEENDERZEEY Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates for both years.
RBITMHERSE -
SESE e HEENES The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
ol ARER 7z @t E AR - Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment loss represents
SEERBESSEREE 2R the loss before tax incurred by each segment without allocation of increase
BaTERE &R EBLIEEY in fair value of investment properties, certain other income, gains and
ENTLEBELA - - BFHMK losses, central administration costs and finance costs. This is the measure
A W REE - PRITHE reported to the executive directors of the Company for the purposes of
AERMERNTARE © Ty resource allocation and performance assessment.

REBRDERFZRRAZBEN
AARRMITEERE ZFTE
TR e
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

5. BEXBERIEERE) 5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(a) EESE(E)

(a) Operating segments (Continued)

THEEXRBEREE(E) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)
AR RRNITE F I EEH No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is presented as the executive
DEEEMBEZERNUASE directors of the Company do not review such information for the purposes
BRNMFERIR W ER7 of resource allocation and performance assessment.
B2 D -
Htv o BEHR OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
SENBEERAIEEANSH Amounts included in the measure of segment results or regularly reviewed
TEEERRATHER & by the chief operating decision makers:
2B
PEBE
47 233 Segment AT ma
osmetics ashion ota orporate onsolidate
C i Fashi Total C Consolidated
FET TER FER FET TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
“E-hE 2019
FERE - Bk Scrap, shrinkage and provision for
EREE RE slow moving inventories 14,337 3,196 17,533 = 17,533
EX - BEREE Depreciation of property, plant
JIhE and equipment 18,007 8,478 26,485 2,506 28,991
BANBEERE S Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments - 176 176 - 176
HEES  BERZEL Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
BiE(%E) plant and equipment 151 (62) 89 = 89
BARRY Capital expenditure
—EX  BERX — Property, plant and equipment 5,821 6,231 12,052 - 12,052
ERIESNEE Provision for onerous contracts 24,875 6,628 31,503 - 31,503
BEEX HWERE Impairment loss recognised in
PR L RERR respect of property, plant and
equipment 1,047 1,150 2,197 - 2,197
DRER
b 353 Segment AT g4
Cosmetics Fashion Total Corporate  Consolidated
TAT THT TET THT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
—EFN\E 2018
FERE  BER Scrap, shrinkage and provision for
BREE BE slow moving inventories 8,904 (3,927) 4977 _ 4977
EX  BRERZE Depreciation of property, plant
e and equipment 20,221 11,010 31,231 2,508 33,739
BRBEEFE SN Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments - 240 240 - 240
HEEE BERREZ Loss (gain) on disposal of
Bt () property, plant and equipment 783 (41) 42 - 142
BARY Capital expenditure
—EX BERE ~ Property, plant and equipment 9,370 6,609 15,979 - 15,979
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HE-Z-NF=A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
5. HEEIRIEER(E) 5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b HEER (b) Geographical information
AREEBZEETEMNEBER The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and Macau,
SRPY - FNE Krh B 2 E i Singapore and other regions of the PRC. Information about the Group’s
2o NEFKBINKEZD 7 revenue from external customers is presented based on the geographical
AR EK IR S EREME S locations of operations.
5l o
2019 2018
FER THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
HE MR Hong Kong and Macau 1,668,204 1,883,814
2N Singapore - 9,385
PRz it = Other regions of the PRC 25,222 35,121
1,693,426 1,928,320
BER A AREFBIMRE & No revenue from a customer of the Group contributed over 10% of the total
o AR EEEEEER revenue of the Group of the corresponding years.
EEFI0% °
ANREFERHEE(TBFE Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
EHMBEBEAERDNASES) assets and rental deposits paid) is presented based on geographical locations
BRIREEMEMRZY - of the assets.
2019 2018
FTHET TET
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FORM Hong Kong and Macau 307,385 299,930
AR 2 B Ath b [& Other regions of the PRC 72,325 54,631
379,710 354,561
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
6. Finance Costs

2019 2018
FTHET TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Interest expense on bank borrowings 9,057 6,560
7. Income Tax Expense
2019 2018
FHET TAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year 869 1,083
(Over) underprovision in prior years (16) 110
853 1,193
Income tax in other jurisdictions
Current year 2,134 1,692
Underprovision in prior years 421 126
2,555 1,818
Deferred tax (Note 17)
Current year 4,926 1,007
8,334 4,018

On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th March, 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The assessable profits of other group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million for the
qualifying group entity.

2019 F3f
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
7. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries operating in Macau are subject to Macau complementary tax
of 12%, subject to finalisation of the tax liability with the relevant tax authority.
During the current year, an underprovision of income tax of HK$403,000 (2018:
underprovision of income tax of HK$90,000) was recognised and charged to profit
or loss.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries
is 25%. During the current year, as underprovision of income tax of HK$18,000
(2018: underprovision of income tax of HK$36,000) was recognised and charged to
profit or loss.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

2019 2018
TR TAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(Loss) profit before tax (71,017) 9,280
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (11,718) 1,531
Effect of different tax rates applicable
to operations in other jurisdictions (249) (858)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 14,306 3,296
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes (7,699) (5,915)
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (494) (4,265)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 11,879 9,361
Tax effect of deductible temporary
difference not recognised 2,069 632
Underprovision in prior years 405 236
Tax effect of the two-tiered profit tax
rates regime (165) -
Income tax expense for the year 8,334 4,018
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8. ZAFE(SR)RF

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
8. (Loss) profit for the Year

2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
REZ (BE) &N E MR (GEA) (Loss) profit for the year has been
5% 18 : arrived at after charging (crediting):
ETEMNES(BEEEHD) Employee benefits expenses
(Ktz#9) - (including directors’ emoluments)
(Note 9):

Fr B Ko H b 42 A Salaries and other benefits 229,530 240,230

EMER Redundancy cost - 2,226

AR (D A EE W 2 (B Share-based payments 174 304

RIRAEFIET B LK Retirement benefits schemes

contributions 10,848 12,150

240,552 254,910

BN & ZE Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 176 240
A Gl Auditors’ remuneration

— R HRTS — audit services 1,927 1,827

— IR — non-audit services 386 343
BRRBAEZ 2 FEKAR(HiFa) Cost of inventories recognised as

expenses (Note a) 1,065,060 1,180,315
E¥ BERREIHE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 28,991 33,739
SRITRI B A (K 5Eb) Bank interest income (Note b) (62) (182)
HEEE  BEEREZ Net loss on disposal of property,

EEFEE (M D) plant and equipment (Note b) 89 742
VHEE N (Es) BE (A b)) Net exchange (gain) loss (Note b) (1,330) 2,274
REREMHEZHSWA Rental income from investment

(BIERIER 2 W) (Man) properties, with negligible

outgoings (Note b) (5,890) (3,874)
EEEE N R E Provision for onerous contracts

(Htety) (Biat16) (Note b) (Note 16) 31,503 =
EX BMEMEEZ Impairment loss on property, plant

WEBE (M Eb) and equipment (Note b) 2,197 -
Hiat - Notes:

(a) RERAZ 2 IFERABIEFERRE (a) Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included scrap, shrinkage and provision for

BERIERTE 2 ##17,533,000% T
(ZZ—)\F : 4,977,000 T) °

(b) SEIFARMBEA - RS REE -

slow moving inventories of HK$17,533,000 (2018: HK$4,977,000).

(b) The amounts are included in other income

, gains and loss.
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BE-_Z—hF=—A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
9. EERTHARME 9. Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments
B EMNS(ZZF—/\F : AfiZ)  The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2018: five) directors were as
BEESAZHEOT ¢ follows:
“E-hE 2019
Wy 0
Executive director ¢
Hifg: O
(hag): B .
Ms, Lam  Non-executive BUFHTEEMD)

BETEE Yuk Sum  director®*?  Independent non-executive director "

Mr. Cheng (Chief  MXMEE EHEEr RXEXE BRESX:
ChungMan,  Executive ~ Mr.Lam Dr.FokKam  Mr. Yeung Mr. Au-Yeung fit
Johnny Officer)* ManTin ~ Chu,John ~ WingKay Hau Cheong Total
ThT ThT THR -z Tin FiEn ThT
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

(Hitd) (Hite)
(Note d) (Note ¢)
e Fees - - 130 130 150 93 503
e Other emoluments
FeREE Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 = = = = 2,220
BARRR AL Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 18 3 - - - - 49
Mol Total emoluments 1,578 091 130 130 150 93 270
—E-N\F 2018
TR E0
Executive director "
T8, )* e
Ms. Lam B I TES M)
BsE L A Yuk Sum Independent non-executive director ¥
Mr. Cheng (Chief  EHHET MUEEE HkERE
Chung Man, Executive  Dr. Fok Kam Mr. Lam Mr. Yeung aar
Johnny Officer)* Chu, John Man Tin Wing Kay Total
THT T THT THL THT THL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
ik Fees = - 130 130 150 410
Hinfle Other emoluments
54 Ro2ah Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 = = = 2,220
RARER 2R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 18 31 - - - 49
[kl Total emoluments 1,578 691 130 130 150 2,679
& MNERZTINBARNETHE  * Ms. Lam Yuk Sum is also the chief executive officer of the Company and
ﬁ/’ t?ﬁﬁiﬁgﬁ Eﬁ i ) her emoluments disclosed above included those services rendered by her as
g% })Z BEETRBERTIRE the chief executive officer.
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BE-ZT—NF=A=+—HLFE
9. EERITHEAIME
(#%&)

Wi

(a) ERARZATEEHE T EREEE
BARR RAKEER AR M
Mo

(b) ERARZFAITESE B ILIFRITE
FHE I BRBEREARTNEEZR
B -

(c) BHE-_ZT-NLFE=FT—-N\F=A
=t—HLEFE AEETEREER
TBERZAE  FAENAREER
A E S BERAE o hoh - TTE RS
FMNEERERBE_T-—NER_-T
—N\F=ZA=1+—BIFEREEAMH

(d) MR ER=—E—N\ELA+=HH
B TESERTRINTES -

(e) BsEEAER—T-—N\FLA+=H
EZERBIIFNTES -

10. EEM2

RREER - BUBHHFALEE-
(=F—N\%F  —)ARAES -
A ELELEE P IS (RS
BTG (ZF—\F M) BSH
ALHBMEMT -

e WO RERZERN
K E A E R
BRI AR 2 2R FIR

BB FIF &I R

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
9. Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services in connection

with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(b) The non-executive director’s and independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

(c) During the years ended 31st March, 2019 and 2018, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors and the chief executive officer as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, neither the chief executive officer nor any of the

directors waived any emoluments during the years ended 31st March, 2019 and 2018.

(d) Mr. Lam Man Tin was re-designated from an independent non-executive director to a

non-executive director on 13th July, 2018.

(e) Mr. Au-Yeung Hau Cheong was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 13th
July, 2018.

10. Employees’ Emoluments
During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one (2018: one) director

of the Company, whose emoluments are set out in note 9 above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2018: four) highest paid individuals are as follows:

2019 2018
FHET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Salaries, share-based payments and
other benefits 3,684 3,586
Performance related incentive
payments 168 294
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 72 72
3,924 3,952

colourmixes MoriMor O  V0CK)  Wanko 2019 3§
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BE-T-NF=A=+—AILFE

10. EEM<(&)

WEMENF THNEE -

B E1,000,00078 7T
1,000,001 7L 21,500,000/ 7T

BE_Z—hErR_ZFE—N\F=A
=+—HLEFE AEBEWEREH
ATZAEME (EREMARER Y
FE BB E -

11. RE

RAFERERERSDIKZIE -

—E-AFPHRESR0.2E
(ZB—N\F: 2B \FE
B AR B A0, 578 1L
—E-\FERHMEE - §0.5%(
(ZF—N\F: _FT—LFE
REBE - &)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
10. Employees’ Emoluments (Continued)

2019 2018
EEHA ER2E

No. of employees No. of employees

Their remuneration was within the
following bands:
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2

During the years ended 31st March, 2019 and 2018, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to these individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

11. Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:

2019 2018
TERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

2019 interim dividend of HKO0.2 cent

(2018: 2018 interim dividend of

HKO.5 cent) per share 5,036 11,944
2018 final dividend of HKO.5 cent

(2018: 2017 final dividend of nil)

per share 12,288 -

17,324 11,944
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R_T- \FERPLFHEEMS -
REBMHEANTRE - ZFKERN

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
11. Dividends (Continued)

Scrip dividends were offered in respect of the 2018 final and interim dividends.
These scrip dividends were accepted by the majority of shareholders, as follows:

EBERZEREERN -

2019 2018 2018
A ENl A HA
Interim Final Interim
FHExT FHET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

B : Dividends:
Re Cash 5,036 2,281 2,053
PARRAR B Scrip alternative - 10,007 9,891
5,036 12,288 11,944

ARNFEEEZEANRLRE_—F
—NWFREBEERIBWNE KL
2,518,000/ 7T + MEZE #F B% 3R 7E JE JE AR
RBEFAREG LHE - AR -

12. BR(GE)EF

ARTRHEAELBRER(EE)R
F T3 AN F £ E51879,351,00078 70 ( =
=—)\F : FEHFI5262,000%T)
RARDB LB MEFEHE (T AT
PFE o

s 24E
St EESRER(BR) AN Z
BB T

BE_ZT-NF=A=+—HLLFE
ZEREBBRNEYERRAR
A BIREETE - ARREREN
TEEESRERRD -

BE-T—/\F=A=+-ALEE
2GRS RN EL mERAD
A2 MR - B ARSHEE
ZAEEERRANRE —F—/\F
ZA=t—ALEEZFHHE -

colourmixes MoriMor O  V0CK)  Wanko

The 2019 final dividend of HKO.1 cent per share totalling approximately
HK$2,518,000 in cash has been proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

12. (Loss) Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the loss for the year of HK$79,351,000 (2018: profit for the
year of HK$5,262,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
the Company set out below.

2019 2018
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
(loss) earnings per share 2,482,739,762 2,398,670,091

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st March, 2019
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options since their assumed
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, 2018
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price for shares for the
year ended 31st March, 2018.

2019 F3f
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

13. BREYERWKEBIKREY 13. Investment Properties and Deposits Paid for Acquisition
XEftRE of Investment Property
FHET
HK$’000
NEEE FAIR VALUE
R_F—tFWOA—H At st April, 2017 104,700
HEAEYE  BERREA ) Transferred from property, plant and equipment (note) 16,145
EETENEERE (M) Transferred from prepaid lease payment (note) 5,326
REEPERZ AFEELA Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 31,630
R-Z—-N\F=HA=+—H At 31st March, 2018 157,801
HEEX  WERRKEBRZ) Transferred from property, plant and equipment (note) 4,508
#eIENHEERE M) Transferred from prepaid lease payment (note) 4,065
RIBRPERZ AT EELA Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 21,079
RS Exchange realignment (1,358)
R-ZB-NF=A=+-—8H At 31st March, 2019 186,095
Wit BEZZ-NF=ZA=+—HILFE" Note:  During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the use of certain industrial properties located in the

HARERFI N ZHEERE - (RF
Bz TEMERGEZE - Bt -
BREE S 552,328,000 (=T — N\
F : 8,384,000/ 7T ) £ 654,000 7T (=
ZT— )\ & : 1,437,000/ 70 ) WA FE AT5
ANEH - HERBZE 2 ITEMERET
ABRBERIE 2B REE S
BEREME - ZEWEZLATEER
HWEE A hRhETOET G REAE
BRAR(ZE—NF : E—KFR#
HERBEXERAERAR)REBERAE
AEEMGE - EX - BERRENUR
BNEEREZAFEAERES A
2,180,000/ 7T (= Z — /\4F : 7,761,000
ABIT) &3,411,0008 L (=T — )\4F -
3,889,000 7T ) IR IELE R 7551 2 5 Bl
5545,00078 70 (=2 — /\F : 1,940,000
T ) & 853,000 L (=T — \ 4 :
972,000/ 7C) 1% - REBEAREME
EA TR -

PRC have been changed which with the commencement of various operating leases entered into
with tenants. As a result, the industrial properties previously included in property, plant and
equipment and the relevant land use rights included in prepaid lease payments with carrying
values of HK$2,328,000 (2018: HK$8,384,000) and HK$654,000 (2018: HK$1,437,000),
respectively, were transferred to investment properties. The properties were fair-valued by
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (2018: Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited) at the date of transfer based on the income capitalisation approach
at the date of transfer. The fair value gain of the property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments of HK$2,180,000 (2018: HK$7,761,000) and HK$3,411,000 (2018: HK$3,889,000)
net of the deferred tax charge of HK$545,000 (2018: HK$1,940,000) and HK$853,000 (2018:
HK$972,000), respectively, were recognised in other comprehensive income at the date of

transfer.
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13. REMERKRBEREY
¥ef®ke(2)

AEEZREMEIMUNET BN —E
ITEREARERM - REER—
ER A ERLR T EENET TEY
¥  AEBEARIES R HRER
REBNMIBAEZMENFEER 5

MAAFEEEAE XD BRI
FREME -
AEBREWER_T-—NF=A

=t BHZAFEENBREEALER
Iﬁ%@Zﬁi AR B EAERF

EBITEEFHRFBRABRARME
—K$§$%ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
A(ZE—N\F : F—KFHEHH
EREEEBMARAR)ETZEE
o MEARNGERENE Y
EYAHBEERRER - (R8T
EFERZHRAERARME —KF
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&i¥ﬁﬁﬁ@@ﬁﬁﬁ

BREMPEER

ZITEREARRBEMAMGHETRA
HERULBOAEE - MAxERYERNZ
EFIXMFAUARABRABERCEE
E > BRLBOERBREUMENRTS
EABRIR S TZ2REREME
ZHUERMRRz ZRMIELFE - I
ABAOERRARZMBOHE 2 &
MEOBESWRABTTER - LRED
EmRzERMSEES - RAFE
A EERMIEEE

RETHMERIFEER - WEES
RERBEASEBRAR -

BEREBOA

FCABEMEERAZER —BE
DM ABEABEUDENRTS LA E
RIS - FRERLEE  UEE
BB RARRZ AR - BEBEMES
N F(BEH1,200,0005 7T 22,000,000
BT (ZZF—/\F : 1,100,000/8 T2
1,880,00078 70 ) N5 - FEVAELLT
BEK L - BEBUREMAFEE
EH - RZIRA -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
13. Investment Properties and Deposits Paid for Acquisition
of Investment Property (Continued)

The investment properties of the Group represents the parking spaces in an
industrial building located in Hong Kong, a commercial property located in Hong
Kong and certain industrial properties located in the PRC. All of the Group’s
properties interests held to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March, 2019 have
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that date by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited and Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited (2018: Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited) respectively, both of them are independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group and possessing the appropriate qualifications
and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited and Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited, are members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

The valuation was determined based on the direct comparison approach for
parking spaces in an industrial building and income capitalisation approach for the
commercial property and the industrial properties. Direct comparison approach
reflects market observable transactions for similar properties, mainly adjusted
for differences in the location and condition of the investment properties. Income
capitalisation approach reflects the rental income of contractual tenancy capitalised
for the unexpired terms of tenancy and the reversionary market rent after expiry
of tenancy in capitalisation. There has been no change to the valuation technique
during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is considered to be their current use.

Direct comparison approach

One of the key inputs used in valuing the parking spaces, was the market
observable transactions of similar properties. Using direct comparison approach
and, taking into account of the differences in the location and condition, fair
values ranged from HK$1,200,000 to HK$2,000,000 (2018: HK$1,100,000 to
HK$1,880,000) per parking space. The increase in the market price per parking
space would result in an increase in the fair value of the parking space, and vice
versa.

2019 F3f
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13. REVERWBREY
EJRAE: <A

WABERALE

AR BB EAMEEBEMRA 2
HAMBEFEGASBEADERN L
L2.90%( =T —)\F : 2.80%) 2)EF
EHFRzHEAMIISET(ZZE—/)N\
F3158T) c AEMLARFRE T
¥VEEBEMAZHETREZIZH A
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

13. Investment Properties and Deposits Paid for Acquisition
of Investment Property (Continued)

Income capitalisation approach

Two of the key inputs used in valuing the commercial property located in
Hong Kong were 1) the capitalisation rate of 2.90% (2018: 2.80%) and 2) the
monthly market rent of HK$315 (2018: HK$315) per square foot. Two of the key
inputs used in valuing the industrial properties located in the PRC were 1) the
capitalisation rate of 5.37% (2018: 5.25%) and 2) the monthly market rent ranging
from RMB20 to RMB28 (2018: RMB11.70 to RMB21.00) per square meter. Any
increase in the capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease in the fair
value of the commercial and industrial properties, and vice versa and, any increase
in monthly market rent per square foot/meter would result in an increase in the fair
value of the commercial and industrial properties, and vice versa.

The Group’s investment properties are categorised within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as at 31st March, 2019 and 2018.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The Group has pledged investment properties with a total of HK$186,095,000
(2018: HK$136,400,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

On 2nd March, 2019, Colourmix Cosmetics Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with the vendor, an independent third party, to acquire the whole of group floor of
No. 88 San Hong Street North New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Property”) for
a consideration of HK$117,500,000. The total cost of the Property together with
transaction costs such as stamp duty is approximately HK$128,458,000. During the
year ended 31st March, 2019, a deposit and related transaction cost in aggregate
amounted to HK$21,739,000 has been paid and presented as deposits paid for
acquisition of investment property. The acquisition of the Property was completed
on 18th June, 2019 and the Property has been accounted for as an investment
property since the property has already been leased to an individual third party
since the completion of the acquisition.
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BE-Z—NF=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
14. E¥ - BERRE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
HETH HE
R BFHE  BEREE GAREE  BOERG af: fit
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery fixtures equipment vehicles Total

TR TR T TAR ThRL ThRL TR
HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

RAE )

RZE-+EmA-A At Ist April, 2017 200,759 133,616 30,772 70,885 22,601 6,107 464,740
i A= Exchange adjustments 4713 3,054 3,124 137 117 139 11,484
RE Additions - 9,995 11 4,445 1,528 - 15,979
HE /iR Disposals/write-off - (24,815) (9,480) (6,007) (1,546) (1,107) (42,955)
ETREE Transferred to investment properties (11,499) = = = = = (11,499)
RZZ-\F=h=1-H At 31st March, 2018 193973 122,050 21427 69,460 22,700 5,139 437,749
i 5 A% Exchange adjustments (2,510) (1,839) (1,519) (66) 47 (37 (6,018)
RE Additions - 8,065 1,508 983 570 926 12,052
HE/HE Disposals/write-off - (8,075) (2,564) (2,592) (319) - (13,550)
ETREE Transferred to investment properties (3,175) = = = = = (3,175)
RZZ-NF=R=1-H At 31st March, 2019 188,288 120,201 21,852 67,785 22,904 6,028 427,058
RERAE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

R=E-+EmA-A At st April, 2017 39,697 112,267 29,544 45,442 18,935 4204 250,089
EREE Exchange adjustments 1211 3,142 25719 131 108 129 7,300
EREE Provided for the year 6,927 13414 1,148 8,976 2411 863 33,739
HE MRS Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (24,634) (9.310) (4.969) (1,490) (1,107) (41,510)
ETRENE Transferred to investment properties (3,115) - - - - - (3,115)
R=Z-\E=h=1-H At 315t March, 2018 44,720 104,189 23,961 49,580 19,964 4089 246,503
BN A% Exchange adjustments (676) (1,748) (1,510) (67) (1) (33) 407
EREE Provided for the year 6,004 11,449 537 7,800 1,726 875 28,991
RERDER HEEE Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss - 2,197 - = = = 2,197
HE /MRS Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (1.979) (2470) (2.494) (291) - (13,34)
ETRENE Transferred to investment properties (847) - - - - - (847)
RZZ-NE=F=1t-H  At3lstMarch 2019 49,801 108,108 20518 54,819 21,358 4929 259,533
REE CARRYING VALUES

R=ZE-1E=R=1-H At 31st March, 2019 138,487 12,093 1,334 12,966 1,546 1,099 167,525
RZE-NE=F=1t—0  At3lstMarch 2018 149,53 17,861 466 19,880 2,736 1,050 191,246

AEB2HELTH NEFMUNESEK  The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
HE o
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colourmixes MoriMor O  V0CK)  Wanko 2019 3R




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

e IS ERRM

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-T-NF=A=+—AILFE

14. EX BERRB(E)

LA EEEZE - BB R EIE B KR FIsR
BEBHNUEGSERATFREXRS
T

HETHRET
Leasehold land and buildings
HEBRTERA
Leasehold improvements
TR 55 Bk we

Plant and machinery
RMEEE

Furniture and fixtures
NG

Office equipment

A

Motor vehicles

AREEE K FIRME(E 138,487,000/ 7T
(ZZF—)\4F : 123,569,000/ 7T) Z
ELHMIET  URAEEER R
IRITRYE RRME o

HE-_ZTZ—AF=A=+—HILt=E
& BRE{E2,328,00058 T (—ZE— )\
F : 8,384,000 L) < HE i R 1
FEEBEREME  BREHY
%0 352,180,0008 (=T — N\ F -
7,761,000 7T ) I H 2 E A K A

w7 °

WK sE23FTE R — L &FE=A
=+—H ' RAEA864,000% T (=

T-N\F: E)NAENERERE
KA -

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, less their residual values, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

RHEFH

Over the terms of leases
20% IR EFH (AREEAE)

20% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter

25%

20%

33'3%

20%

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of

HK$138,487,000 (2018: HK$123,569,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, leasehold land and buildings with
a carrying value of HK$2,328,000 (2018: HK$8,384,000) was transferred
to investment properties resulting in a gain on revaluation of properties of
HK$2,180,000 (2018: HK$7,761,000) recognised in other comprehensive income.

As at 31st March, 2019, a motor vehicle with carrying value of HK$864,000 (2018:
Nil) was held under a finance lease as set out in note 23.
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15. FESHEENRE

AEBEZANEERRRE :

FREREINHELH

B2 T Z DT -
mBEE
FREBEE

AEECIEFBENEERE ZREE
4,522,000 L (ZZ—\F : £) - A
BMEAEEER T —RIRBITRE -

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
15. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

2019 2018

TR TAT

HK$°000 HK$’000

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong 4,522 5,768
Analysed for reporting purpose as:

Current asset 171 254

Non-current asset 4,351 5,514

4,522 5,768

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with a carrying value of
HK$4,522,000 (2018: Nil) to secure general banking facilities granted to the

Group.
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16. Provision

The following is the provision for onerous contracts recognised and movement
during the current and prior years:

2019 2018
TR TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
At 1st April - _
Provided for the year 31,503 =
31,503 —

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liabilities 22,406 -
Non-current liabilities 9,097 -
31,503 —

Provision for onerous contracts is made based on an assessment of the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the lease agreement that exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it from all underperforming retail
stores of the cosmetics and fashion businesses. In accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies, the Group reviews the discounted cash flow forecasts of all
of the retail stores with non-cancellable clause in the respective lease agreements
to the end of the non-cancellable lease period to determine whether there is any
indication of retail stores underperforming.

The provision for onerous contracts is calculated based on discounted cash flow
forecast of Group’s underperforming retail stores to the end of the non-cancellable
lease period and, at a discount rate of 6.2%. Other key assumptions used when
determining the discounted cash flow forecasts include revenue growth, gross
profit margins and unavoidable costs that will be incurred during the remaining
non-cancellable lease period. Amounts are determined based on past performance,
the management’s expectations on the market development and the future
operating plans of the Group, and taking into consideration certain unfavorable
circumstances that occurred in second half of the current year which affected the
retail industry and the consumption sentiment in Hong Kong. As at 31st March,
2019, the provision for onerous contracts was HK$31,503,000 (2018: Nil).
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HE-_Z-NF=RA=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
17. EEHE 17. Deferred Taxation

MBI GEEHBERRAERME A TiE For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position,
EFEEENBEBEDIRIE o TX AR  certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the

BSR4 B 2 IRIERR BRI analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2019 2018
FER THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEEF I EE Deferred tax assets 5,089 6,451
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (11,311) (6,533)
(6,222) (82)

TYEARFENBEIFERRZEZE  The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

RERIEEE(BE) RERAES - movements thereon during the current and prior years:
BIRTEE
ZEEER RER

Temporary FEHEA
EHWE difference Unrealised

Revaluation from tax profit on #t
of properties  depreciation inventories Total
FET TET THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=ZZ—tFMA—H At Ist April, 2017 (2,910) 903 5,844 3,837
KB E A (HR) Credited (charged) to profit
or loss 133 137 (1,277) (1,007)
A E s 2 EUA R IR Charged to other comprehensive
(Ktat13) income (Note 13) (2,912) = = (2,912)
RZZ—\F=A=+—H At3lst March, 2018 (5,689) 1,040 4,567 (82)
PREZAF (F0BR)FTA (Charged) credited to
profit or loss (3,858) 294 (1,362) (4,926)
A E s 2 EWA R IR Charged to other comprehensive
(Kteti3) income (Note 13) (1,398) = = (1,398)
IR Exchange realignment 184 - - 184
R=ZZF—hE=H=+—H At 3lst March, 2019 (10,761) 1,334 3,205 (6,222)
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17. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At 31st March, 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$184,374,000 (2018:
HK$128,709,000) available for offset against future assessable profits.

At 31st March, 2019, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the unused tax losses of HK184,374,000 (2018: HK$128,709,000) due to the
unpredictability of future assessable profit streams. Included in tax losses are
losses of HK$15,478,000 (2018: HK$28,351,000) that will expire in 2020 to 2024
(2018: 2019 to 2023), other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31st March, 2019, the Group had deductible temporary differences mainly
arising from tax depreciation of HK$19,455,000 (2018: HK$10,030,000).
Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of such deductible temporary
differences of HK$6,923,000 (2018: HK$6,202,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to the remaining deductible temporary differences
of HK$12,532,000 (2018: HK$3,828,000) as it is not probable that assessable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to undistributed and
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$61,835,000 (2018:
HK$63,759,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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18. #FE& 18. Inventories
2019 2018
FET FHIT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Bk Raw materials 7,183 12,089
ERR Work in progress 12,833 14,199
RIRK i Finished goods 412,776 472,234
432,792 498,522
19. EWESHERHEM 19. Trade and Other Receivables
PE W k18
2019 2018
FERT Tt
HK$’°000 HK$’000
U E 5718 Trade receivables 23,951 34,917
Hith e U Fx I8 Other receivables 16,106 18,376
40,057 53,293

INER B Bt E S S B AL FE WRIB 4 T30 The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from sales counters
HZE60HB Z{ZEH : M4 THLZEEF  and a credit period of 60 to 120 days to its wholesale customers. The following is
ZEEHNT0BZE1208 - LT A an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end
MAREHR - W EZHE 25| 2  of the reporting period:

W& 558 2 BRilk 21T

2019 2018
FET FET

HK$000 HK$’000

30BA Within 30 days 14,828 24,801
31—60H 31 — 60 days 633 160
61—90H 61 — 90 days 665 308
91—120H 91 — 120 days 479 4,770
#120H Over 120 days 7,346 4,878
23,951 34,917
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit record and defines
credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to customers with a satisfactory
and trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

As at 31st March, 2019, included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,825,000 which are past due as
at the reporting date. The past due balances have been past due 90 days or more
are not considered as in default. The directors of the Company consider that the
recoverability of these debts are high based on historical experience and taking
into consideration of forward-looking information. Accordingly, the management
of the Group considers that allowance for credit losses of trade receivables is
insignificant as at 31st March, 2019. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

As at 31st March, 2018, 88% of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired were under the internal credit review by the Group. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

At 31st March, 2018, included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are trade
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,103,000 which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
counterparties have sound financial background.

Ageing of trade receivables presented based on the invoice date at 31st March,
2018 which are past due but not impaired are set out as below:

2018
Fi
HK$’000

91 — 120 days 4,103

©
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

DARYGHE N TEtE
Denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) HKS$
FAT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31st March, 2019 530 587
At 31st March, 2018 818 887

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the year ended
31st March, 2019 are set out in note 33(b).

20. Bank Balances, Deposits and Cash
The Group’s bank balances and deposits carry interest at prevailing bank deposits

rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.69% (2018: 0.001% to 0.30%) per annum and have
an original maturity of three months or less.

The Group’s bank balances and deposits that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

RARME N TEtE RExsHE
Denominated in
United States
RMB HKS$ dollars (“USD”)
FAT FHAT FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31st March, 2019 131 4,817 5
At 31st March, 2018 192 9,074 2,337
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21. Trade and Other Payables

At 31st March, 2019, included in the Group’s trade and other payables were trade
payables of HK$37,994,000 (2018: HK$55,961,000). Details of the aged analysis
of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

2019 2018
FTHET TAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Within 30 days 26,545 43,814
31 - 60 days 6,168 7,963
61 — 90 days 2,581 1,693
Over 90 days 2,700 2,491
37,994 55,961

An analysis of the Group’s other payables is set out below:
2019 2018
FHET TAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
Accrued expenses 33,307 33,919
Other payables 8,320 9,681
Other taxes payables 521 1,495
42,148 45,095

The Group’s trade and other payables denominated in currencies
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

LA T EHE
HK$
TR
HK$°000

At 31st March, 2019 188
At 31st March, 2018 19

other than the

AR T EHE
Euro (“EUR”)
TAET
HK$°000

4,568
5,527
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
22. Secured Bank Borrowings

2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Bank loans 216,270 208,810
Import loans 49,320 60,396
265,590 269,206
The secured bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
2019 2018
FHET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Carrying amounts repayable*:
Within one year 212,860 201,936
In the second year 11,457 14,540
In the third to fifth year inclusive 41,273 34,245
More than five years - 18,485
265,590 269,206
Analysis of carrying amounts:
Amounts due within one year shown
under current liabilities 212,860 201,936
Carrying amount of bank loans that
are not repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting
period but contain a repayment
on demand clause hence shown as
current liabilities 52,730 67,270
265,590 269,206
& The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
22. Secured Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest at
effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) ranging
from 1.50% to 4.30% (2018: 1.50% to 3.72%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

HMERFE @ TEE
Denominated in
USD EUR
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31st March, 2019 18,509 4,717
At 31st March, 2018 8,817 4,849

The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 26).
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23. RIEHERIE 23. Obligations Under Finance Lease
2019 2018
FHET FHBT
HK$°000 HK$°000
MERESTAT : Analysed for reporting purposes as:
mBAIE Current liabilities 224 -
SERBEE Non-current liabilities 393 _
617 -

R EHERSEH B IAREB 2 It is the Group’s policy to lease its motor vehicle under finance lease. The lease
% o HEHA3E - B@4L AN termis 3 years. The amount is non-interest bearing.
=]

o
i

REAENR REAENRRE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

zg-nE  “FF Z®-AF SF)F
ZA=Z+-B =A=t-H ZA=+-B =A=t-H

31.3.2019 31.3.2018 31.3.2019 31.3.2018
THERT THT FET THET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
JENREMRERE : Obligations under finance lease payable:
—ER Within one year 224 = 224 -
—FNHETEARE Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years 224 - 224 -
WENLETBBRE Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years 169 - 169 -
MEALETRE Present value of lease obligations 617 = 617 -
N T ZEAREEZEIE  Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months
FEGINEHEERT) (shown under current liabilities) (224) _
R+-ERBEE ZIB Amount due for settlement after 12 months 393 _
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24, B 24. Share Capital
LEREAR
Number of BE
ordinary shares Value
FH
HK$’000
TR (FRRMEE0.01E L) Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each
JRIE ¢ Authorised:
R-—ZT—+&mA—Q - At 1st April, 2017,
—E-N\EERZZE—NF 31st March, 2018 and 2019
=A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
BEEITREC Issued and fully paid:
RZZE—tFMHA—H At 1st April, 2017 2,388,884,410 23,888
KREIR €/ B MEBEITHARD Issue of new shares in lieu of
cash dividends 68,692,164 687
RZE—NF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2018 2,457,576,574 24,575
REREREMBEITHRD Issue of new shares in lieu of
(K1) cash dividends (Note) 60,424,760 605
R=-ZTE-hhEFE=H=+—8H At 31st March, 2019 2,518,001,334 25,180

M RZFE—-NF+A=+—8H ' KAdA Note:  On 31st October, 2018, the Company issued and allotted a total of 60,424,760 ordinary shares of

B R ER0.16568 T BT R LB A HK$0.01 each at HK$0.1656 per share, in licu of cash for the 2018 final dividend.
60,424,760 % AR E (E0.01 B T 2 & 8
B URE T - N\ERPRERE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
25. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made rental payments for buildings under operating

leases as follows:

2019 2018

TR TET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Minimum lease payments 338,335 383,445
Contingent rental payments 8 71
338,343 383,516

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

FET FHIT

HK$’000 HK$°000

Within one year 241,399 282,937
In the second to fifth year inclusive 167,564 218,024
408,963 500,961

In addition to these commitments, the Group may pay additional rental expenses in

respect of certain premises which are contingent upon the level of sales achieved by

the particular stores.

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain of its

retail stores and office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term of

three years. Certain lease contracts are with contingent rental arrangements.
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BE-_Z—hF=—A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
25. REHE(E) 25. Operating Leases (Continued)
AEBERBEHAA The Group as lessor

RAFEANBGR 2 WEMSUW A  Property rental income earned during the year was HK$5,890,000 (2018:
45,890,000 8 T ( =& — N\ F ¢ HK$3,874,000). All of the properties held have committed tenants with terms that
3,874,000/ 7T) - FIEBE 2 W#*HE  ranged from two months to five years.

ERAFEHENTMEAZRAFH A

ﬁ °
NAREHR - NEFEMASEIZ4S At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
%) AN ARRREMEEE : following future minimum lease payments:
2019 2018
FET FHTT
HK$°000 HK$’000
—FRA Within one year 5,048 5,212
E_ZENF(BEERME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 6,160 7,897
11,208 13,109
26. BEEIEKR| 26. Pledge of Assets

RAEAEHI®  AEBIEFETE TR At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged by the Group
TUAEESRIAERE —RIFETRE to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:

RIGOEENT -
2019 2018
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
KREYE Investment properties 186,095 136,400
HE L NEF Leasehold land and buildings 138,487 123,569
FENHEEFE Prepaid lease payments 4,522 =
329,104 259,969
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27. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 30th August, 2013, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All directors, full-
time employees and any other persons who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company, have contributed or will contribute to the Group are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.
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27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that participant
and the amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise of
the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the date of offer. The subscription price will
be established by the board of directors of the Company at the time the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the tenth anniversary
of the adoption of the respective share option scheme.

At 31st March, 2019, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme in aggregate was 21,000,000
(31st March, 2018: 39,760,000), representing 0.8% (31st March, 2018: 1.6%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

No options were granted to the directors of the Company during both years or
outstanding at 31st March, 2018 and 2019 under the Scheme.
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27. BBKRRESHEI(AE)

TREEAEEIE S I8 5 8155
2 W R RS 2 2

g %

A

RAES
Date of grant

“Z-=F+A+A
(-4

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 1)

“Z-=%tA+H
(F=#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 2)

ZE-NENAZTHA
(E7°48)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 6)

“Z-NENAZTRA
(Btht)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 7)

“FLE-AN
(EN\#)

9th January, 2017
(Batch 8)

“E2-+E-AnA
(EN4)

9th January, 2017
(Batch 9)

ARERLTHE

Exercisable at the end of the year

EFATEE

Weighted average exercise price

colourmix &

HE_ZT-NF=A=+—HILF

TEREES
Vesting period

“Z-=F1AtRAE
ZE-~ET+ARA

Tth October, 2013 to
6th October, 2016

“Z-=%tRtAHZE
Z2-N\E+A5A

Tth October, 2013 to
6th October, 2018

“Z-ENERA-tRAZE
“F—+FMA-TEA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2017

“T-RENA-TRAZE
“F-NFBA-tRA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2019

“2-t¥-AhAZE
“E3F- A

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

“2-+E-ANRE
“2--#-A)\R

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

BEBERZERERAF

The following tables disclose details of options granted under the Scheme held by

employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019:

L

Exercisable period

“E-"FTAtHE
“F-)\F+AAR

Tth October, 2016 to
6th October, 2018

“2-\&+tAtAZ
-2 YN

Tth October, 2018 to
6th October, 2020

“I—+EMA-ThHZE
“E-NFERA-TEA
25th April, 2017 to
24th April, 2019

“E-NEMA-tRAZE
“Z--FNACZtEA
25th April, 2019 to
24th April, 2021

“E2_RE-RARE
“F-2f-ANR

9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2022

“R-CE-AARE
“Z-mE-ANA

9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024

BRITEE
Exercise price
per share

0.2250%7C
HK$0.2250

0.2250%7C
HK$0.2250

0.30007 7T
HK$0.3000

0.3000 7
HK$0.3000

0.1832AT
HK$0.1832

0.183237T
HKS0.1832

RZF-NE R-B-hE
BA-H REER REER ZA=t-8
&8 it xR HA{TE
Balance at Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding
14.2018  during the year during the year at 31.3.2019
14,760,000 (2,600,000) (12,160,000 -
14,760,000 (2,600,000) - 12,160,000
2,120,000 (200,000) - 1,920,000
2,120,000 (200,000) - 1,920,000
3,000,000 (500,000) - 2,500,000
3,000,000 (500,000) - 2,500,000
39,760,000 (6,600,000 (12,160,000) 21,000,000
14,080,000

0.2267 0.2232 0.2250 0.2288
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REBE_ZT-N\F=A=+—HItF

BA :

RiAH
Date of grant

“E-=F1AtA
(F-#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 1)

ZZ-=E1AtA
(E=#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 2)

“3-NEMA-TEHA
(EAH)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 6)

“E-MERAZTERA
(Ft8)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 7)

“E-tE-ANR
(EN4)

9th January, 2017
(Batch 8)

“2-+E-ANA
(ENH)

9th January, 2017
(Batch 9)

RERTE

Exercisable at the end of the year

METEHEE

Weighted average exercise price

Annual Report 2019
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27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

fiEasES
Vesting period

ZE-=5TRtRE
ZE-ETAAR

Tth October, 2013 to
6th October, 2016

“E2--£1AtRZ
“2-\§1+AnA

Tth October, 2013 to
6th October, 2018

“T-BERA-tRAR
2L FNA-tAA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2017

“E-MENA-tRAZ
“F-NEMA-TEA
25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2019

“E-tE-ANRE
“TTE-A\R
9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

“Z-t5-AnAZ
ZZC2E-A)\A
9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

colourmix &

T

Exercisable period

“E-5FtAtRE
“E-N\F1ARH

Tth October, 2016 to
6th October, 2018

“2-\¥tAtRZ
Z2-ZEARA

Tth October, 2018 to
6th October, 2020

“S-tEMA-THAZ
“E-NEWR-1MA
25th April, 2017 to
24th April, 2019

“E-NEMA-tRAZ
“E-—FPA-1MA
25th April, 2019 to
24th April, 2021

ZRoEE-AARE
“5-—%#-A)\R
9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2022

“R-CE-AARE
“TmE-ANE
9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024

VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

During the year ended 31st March, 2018:

ShiTRE
Exercise price
per share

0205057
HK$0.2250

0.2250% T
HKS$0.2250

03000757
HK$0.3000

03000 T
HKS$0.3000

0183270
HKS0.1832

0.183257
HKS$0.1832

R-B-tE R=B-N\E
BA-H WEER  ZA=t-B
Pd i i CESI
Balance at Cancelled  Outstanding
142017  during the year ~ at 31.3.2018
15,960,000 (1,200,000) 14,760,000
15,960,000 (1,200,000) 14,760,000
2,120,000 = 2,120,000
2,120,000 = 2,120,000
3,000,000 - 3,000,000
3,000,000 - 3,000,000
42,160,000 (2,400,000) 39,760,000
16,880,000

0.2266 0.2250 0.2267
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27. BBKRRESHEI(AE)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

No share options exercised during the year ended 31st March, 2019 (2018: Nil).

The options were granted on 25th April, 2014 and 9th January, 2017 under the
Scheme. The estimated fair values of the options granted on that date were:

HK$
Date of grant BT
25th April, 2014 (Batch 7) 0.088
9th January, 2017 (Batch 8) 0.041
9th January, 2017 (Batch 9) 0.051

In respect of share options granted on 25th April, 2014 and 9th January, 2017,
the fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the
“Black-Scholes Model”). The inputs into the model were as follows:

ZEN 2B ASIELT
Batch 7 Batch 8 Batch 9
Etit FNH FE Rt
Fii% L B R i £ B Number of options granted 5,600,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
I (& Share price HK$0.30075 7T HKS$0.176078 7T HKS$0.176078 7T
TE(E Exercise price HKS$0.30075 7T HK$0.1832/5 7T HK$0.1832/8 7T
TEER K IR Expected volatility 54.76% 45.47% 50.96%
T8 B 4F B Expected life 7 years®F 5 yearsF 7 yearsF
48 [ [ 7Rl Risk-free rate 1.750% 1.374% 1.374%
TEHARR B B =R Expected dividend yield 6.313% 5.795% 5.376%

BEHRERAARRERBEREL
FEHERPILZBERBEMETE -

AEBEINRBE _ZT—NLFE=A
—t+t—HALEFEEEARRKRE 21T
FRFEERRESEZLAFEYI A
174,000/ 70 ( —ZZ — \F : 304,000/8
JC) °

Bz —FEHENE BEGTER
BREHAZAFEE - R EER
B2 FEERERRZZ8RER

RIBES 2 &EMT - BREEES
ETIERRZTRAEBHETZEMK

R

o

colourmixes MoriMor O  V0CK)  Wanko

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over past 5 to 7 years up to valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$174,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2019 (2018: HK$304,000) in relation to the vesting of share options granted
by the Company.

The Black-Scholes Model has been used to estimate the fair value of the options on
the date of grant. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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28. RIKBREHE
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28. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for qualifying
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes at the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiary operating in Singapore is required to participate in the
Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit costs charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent contributions to the CPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the CPF scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are also required to make
contributions to state-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of the monthly basic
salaries of the employees to the relevant schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these pension schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$10,848,000 (2018:

HK$12,150,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of plan.

29. Related Party Disclosures
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the
year was as follows:

2019 2018

FTET TAT

HK$°000 HK$°000

Short-term benefits 4,847 5,005
Post-employment benefits 103 88
Share-based payments 45 80
4,995 5,173

The remuneration of directors and key executives is recommended to the Board by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019

30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Non-current Asset
Interests in subsidiaries

Current Assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Secured bank borrowings

Net Current Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

MoriMor O  Veeko  Wanko

2019 2018
FERT TAT
HK$°000 HK$°000
132,012 132,012
330 346
404,531 375,623
158 174
405,019 376,143
914 808
215,231 208,652
11,000 -
227,145 209,460
177,874 166,683
309,886 298,695
25,180 24,575
284,706 274,120
309,886 298,695

2019 F#R
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30. EQATBMBERRERE) 30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)
et : Note:
BRGEE BB BIRERE BRIFER
Share Contributed Share option Retained Etar
premium surplus reserve profits Total
FET FET FHET FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
R=ZZ—tFWA—H At 1st April, 2017 205,048 53,135 1,925 1,037 261,145
AN N M R 48 2 TE A Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 15,534 15,534
ERRALEE 2 ARD & Recognition of equity-settled
2 B share-based payments = = 304 - 304
[P 100 Share options cancelled - - (123) - (123)

HERBD KRB (Hati11) Dividends recognised as
distribution (Note 11)

—B&e — cash - - - (2,053) (2,053)
— AR B — scrip alternative 9,204 = = (9,891) (687)
R=F—/\F=A=+—8H At 31st March, 2018 214,252 53,135 2,106 4,627 274,120
AN M R 42 2 TE A Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year — - — 19,360 19,360
HRRARLEE 2 LAY & Recognition of equity-settled
2 B share-based payments - - 174 - 174
BT 2 BB AR Share options lapsed/cancelled = = (1,026) = (1,026)

R IR ZRE(MF11) Dividends recognised as
distribution (Note 11)

—B& — cash = = = (7.317) (7,317)
—ABRRE — scrip alternative 9,402 = = (10,007) (605)
—NWF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2019 223,654 53,135 1,254 6,663 284,706
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31. FEMBLAFIE 31. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
AKRBNZE—NFENR_ZF—/)\F = Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March, 2019 and
A=+—HWMTERBRAFIMEREM 2018 were as follows:

™

ERTRAR FAAMBECRT
BA/EREX  RE/EMEAEELAH

HM/ K% Issued and Proportion of nominal
Place of fully paid value of issued share
HEAREMRE incorporation/  share capital/ capital/registered capital FEEH
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
(Hizta)
(Note a)
2019 2018
TRECHBBERRA] BE 1,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% {LhmRkEERTE
Colourmix Cosmetics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retailing of cosmetics &
skin care products
Colourmix Cosmetics Retail Company Limited i 100,00078 7T 100% 100% ftHEREERTE
Hong Kong HK$100,000 Retailing of cosmetics &
skin care products
Colourmix International Holdings Limited &k 10,0007 7C 100% 100% HBEME
Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property holding
WBERERHEERAR(Hits) & 20,000,000/ 7T 100% 100%  FXKEE
Shantou Huanan Digao Fashion Company Limited PRC HK$20,000,000 Manufacturing of garments
(Note b)
BN = PR & B R 2 B (H12Eb) (Note b) H 28,350,000/ 7T 100% 100% MKREERHIE
PRC HK$28,350,000 Retailing and wholesaling
of garments
MEBEREBRRE (M) hE 36,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% MERBEERFEYNE
Shantou Yungao Fashion Company Limited (Note b)) ~ PRC HK$36,000,000 Manufacturing of garments
& property holding
BeEXRERAR BE 2,400,000 70 100% 100% MKEE
Veeko Fashion Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,400,000 Retailing of garments

141
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31. TEMBARFE(E

WERAR AR

Name of subsidiary

Veeko Holdings Limited

Wina Success Limited

Hiz -

a. N A Al B ¥ #F A Veeko Holdings
Limited ¥ %+ E XFARAA o
HEARRAEEREA -

b REATNRERANERECEI
R -

B B R R 4R [ B AU E ] B )
BB H R EEERE
FRINHEERRARAFATIERE
$%I¥miﬁimkﬁﬁ$%lk

NEERBBEZMBAR - EFER
Rﬂﬁﬁ@%%ﬁﬁZﬁ%@%ﬁﬂ
BRITE °
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31. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

ERTRAR FRARFRERT
RE/EMEX  RE/EMELEELAH

S5/ B Issued and Proportion of nominal
Place of fully paid value of issued share
incorporation/  share capital/ capital/registered capital FTEXH
establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
(Hizta)
(Note a)
2019 2018
RBRAME  61856%T 100% 100% BRAER
BVI US$618.56 Investment holding
BE 100 7T 100% 100% FEME
Hong Kong HK$100 Property holding
Notes:
a. The Company directly holds the interest in Veeko Holdings Limited. All other interests shown
above are indirectly held by the Company.
b. The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the assets or liabilities of the Group at the end of the year.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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32. EXEKRER
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33. &®IA

33a. ERITEER
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ERREEFIA(BRERE R
ReFHFERE)

TEMEE

colourmix &

MoriMor O  VeeK)  Wanko

For the year ended 31st March, 2019
32. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes secured
bank borrowings disclosed in note 22, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

33. Financial Instruments

33a. Categories of financial instruments

2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Financial assets
Amortised cost 93,301 -
Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents) - 114,724
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 310,095 334,479

2019 F#R
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other receivables, utility
deposits paid, bank balances, deposits and cash, trade and other payables and
secured bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (represented by currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(1) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales, purchases and
secured bank borrowings, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. In
addition, group entities are exposed to foreign currency risk attributable to intra-
group receivables and payables where the denomination of the receivables and
payables is in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on
bank balances and deposits, receivables, payables, bank borrowings and intra-
group receivables and payables denominated in RMB, HK$, USD and EUR. The
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BE afE

Assets Liabilities
2019 2018 2019 2018
FHERT FET FET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$°000
661 1,015 6 -
13,335 15,840 188 25,452
3,608 10,408 20,605 12,077
- - 9,285 9,243
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e ¥ S AEEIINEIER EF R TR
5%(=F—)\F 5% ) ZHRRE - 5%
—E—)\F 5% ) BEERBYH AN
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(1) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the USD/HKS$ exchange rate. In this regard, the Group does not expose to
significant currency risk arising from USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and
decrease in the functional currency of each group entity against the relevant foreign
currency. 5% (2018: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes the
Group’s outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items, intra-group
receivables and payables where the denomination of the receivables and payables
is in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2018: 5%) increase in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates decrease (increase)
in post-tax loss (2018: increase (decrease) in post-tax profit) for the year where the
functional currency of each group entity strengthens 5% (2018: 5%) against the
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of functional currency
of each group entity against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax (loss) profit.

ANREZZE B FE Ewa7

RMB impact HKS$ impact EUR impact
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
THERT T THER THIL TER THTL
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
27 (42) (549) 401 388 386
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
short-term bank deposits (note 20) and bank borrowings (note 22). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. The exposure to the interest rate risk for variable-rate bank
deposits is insignificant.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate and London Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s bank
borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy in relation to
fair value and cash flow interest rate risks. However, management monitors interest
rate exposure on ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 (2018: 50) basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2018: 50) basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31st
March, 2019 would increase/decrease by HK$1,109,000 (2018: post-tax profit
would decrease/increase by HK$1,124,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31st March, 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss model) on trade receivables
individually for debtors. The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected lives of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information, including but not limited to expected growth rate of
the industry, that available without undue cost or effort. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC and Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group also have concentration of credit risk on bank deposits which are
deposited with banks with high credit rating. Other than the above, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit risk. The credit risks on bank
balances and deposits are limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with
several banks with good reputation and high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other receivables, bank balances and
deposits has not increased significantly since initial recognition and has assessed
the ECL rate under 12m ECL method based on the Group’s assessment in the risk
of default of the respective counterparties.
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33. €@MITHE(ZE 33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. K EBREEEERK
R(E)

EE R R ERF G ()
AEBENABEERRFENFEE

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following

AT AR - categories:
bl g FEWE 5 RE HttEMEE
Category Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
KRR HhmERMERRBE - BEXEER EHEMEEEE— 128 AR i E E B 18
BHIFIA 3 (5 EORME
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
default and does not have any not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
BEREE BERARERBRREREN EHRHEEERE— 1218 A TR E & &518
I (= EORME
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
but usually settles after due date not credit-impaired
75k EEREBEBANIEIHE R EHEHEEBE— EHEREERE—
SINER B IR #4624 A I (= ERE W B ERIE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
&1 BREBERTNEECEERE EHEMEREEE— EHENEEEE—
EEERE EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
3 EREBERTNEBARNERKRYENE - FUASME TRIA S M
BAREEYE BRI CIR AT RE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty

and the Group has no realistic prospect

of recovery
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HE-Z-NF=A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019

33. €@mIA(Z 33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. BEEKREEBZKRE 33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
K(E) (Continued)

1= B E b R EFS (&) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

TRFAFMAEFBZSEHZEEIE  The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets,
M EeREEMRECEERE ¢ which are subject to ECL assessment:

IS E TR ABEETR 128 A = HBIRMEE
2HEEEESE
—E-NE ogza External Internal 12-month or Gross carrying
2019 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
FET
HK$’000
FEWE 5 IE 19 T3 A kst 2> HEHEEER 23,951
— W EREERE
Trade receivables N/A Note i Lifetime ECL not

credit-impaired

E i pE R IE 19 N3¢ FA Ff i 1R2MERFESREEEE 7,061
Other receivables N/A Note ii 12m ECL
BITEBRRIFR 20 Aa3EAL Bt 5 1218 AEERE 8 EE 52,057
Bank balances and deposits Aa3 to Al Note ii 12m ECL
BfRkEZRS TEF TEA Bt Eii RERESREEEE 13,000
Utility deposits paid N/A N/A Note ii 12m ECL
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

i. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL for individual trade debtors.
During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Group considers that provision of impairment
allowance for trade receivables is insignificant.

ii. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group has applied the general approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as there is no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The Group determines the ECL for other receivables, bank
balances and deposits, and utility deposits paid by assessment of probability of default. During
the year ended 31st March, 2019, in view of the nature of these balances, historical settlement
record and good reputations of the counterparties, the Group considers the provision of
impairment allowance for other receivables, bank balances and deposits, and utility deposits paid
is insignificant.

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a major source of liquidity. Details of
which are set out in note 22. As at 31st March, 2019, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$146,685,000 (2018: HK$71,287,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities and obligations under finance lease. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
obligations under finance lease based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings containing a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities and obligations under finance lease are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
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HE-Z-NF=A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019

33. €@MITHE(ZE 33. Financial Instruments (Continued)
33b. B ERESEBZERE 33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(&)
REETRE (B

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
RBEMNERASHEERE - B

KRERFBHNE - ARTRSRR
RRERRZ M REBHES L -

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.

152

RoE-NF
REXY FERE =A=1-A
METENE  SR-fAA nEEE  ZBEE
Weighted ~ On demand ZEAZE-E Total  Carrying
average  orlessthan  —Z={8f Imonths -FERE  WEEZEF  undiscounted amount
interest rate Tmonth 1to 3 months tolyear  lto2years 2toSyears  cashflows at31.3.2019
Bk TR TR ThR TR TR Thn ThT
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
3 2019
L LHBER Non-derivative financial
BERERE liabilities and obligations
under finance lease
ERZSZTERRMENZE  Trade and other payables - 43,888 = - = = 43,388 43,888
HERERE Obligations under finance lease - 19 56 149 24 169 617 617
FERRRE Secured bank borrowings
-3 - variable rate kAl 267,122 = = = = 267,12 265,590
311,029 56 149 24 169 311,627 310,095
RZE-/\F
BEXY, ARRE =A=1-H
METEHE  SR-{EA negE  ZBEE
Weighted ~ On demand ZfEAZE-f Total Carrying
average  orlessthan  —E={EA Smonths  —FEME  WEERE  undiscounted amount
interest rate I'month 1 to3 months tolyear  lto2years  2toSyears  cashflows  at31.3.2018
BAl T T Thx Thr T Thx Thr
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000
“E-)\E 2018
L LReE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
ENE SRR LM EN R Trade and other payables - 65,273 - - - - 65,073 65,273
BERBRE Secured bank borrowings
-38 - variable rate 232 270,325 - - - - 270,325 269,206
335,598 - - - - 335,598 334479
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For the year ended 31st March, 2019
33. Financial Instruments (Continued)

33b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31st March, 2019 and 2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to HK$265,590,000 and HK$269,206,000, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid within five years (2018: six years) after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements,
details of which are set out in the table below:

BRI -NERRERERRNZBAEE(REEERAHES)
Maturity Analysis - Bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

RER ARRE

HRIER HEAT
On demand MERZIE Total BAE
orlessthan ~ 1Z3EA I months 1528 1358 SENL  undiscounted  Carrying
Imonth 1to3 months tolyear  Lto2years 2to3years Over5years cash outflow amount
TEn Tin T TEn T T TER Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
168,047 35,702 11,660 13,072 44,609 - 273,090 265,590
156,198 36,311 11423 15916 31,257 18,629 275,734 269,206

33c. Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis, with most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit
risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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BE-_Z—hF=—A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
3. BEBEEBHFFE4EEME 2 34. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
iR activities

TREVAEBRRETETELR The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing
B EHFS  BIEESRIEIRSE  activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
B mEEREHMELEZBEARD K financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
BRAANEBR e lReneaxR"EA be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
MEETHMERESRE2IRE/iEsk  from financing activities.

ARBESREMEEZEE -

mEHE

BER PES EIE

RITEE  FEHEX Obligations

Secured Accrued ERRE under
bank interest Dividend finance g
borrowings expenses payable lease Total

TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$000 ~ HK$’000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$’000

(Hizti) (Hiatii) (Hiatiii)
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)

R-ZE—+FIMA—H At lst April, 2017 (300,132) (227) = = (300,359)

BEHSRE Financing cash flows 30,926 6,558 2,053 - 39,537

FER H & Non-cash changes

BRERBE KA Finance costs recognised = (6,560) = = (6,560)
WRBDIKZRE Dividends recognised
as distribution - - (2,053) - (2,053)
R-ZE—\F=H At 31st March, 2018
=+—H (269,206) (229) - - (269,435)
MERESRE Financing cash flows 3,616 9,028 7,317 56 20,017
IR & FH Non-cash changes
EERRE KA Finance costs recognised - (9,057) = = (9,057)
ERAEDIKZEE Dividends recognised as
distribution - - (7,317) - (7,317)
WEER Addition of property,
= & & plant and equipment = - - (673) (673)
R-ZE—NF=H At 31st March, 2019
=+—H (265,590) (258) - (617) (266,465)

M - Notes:

(i) AEBBRTEERRBRRITERLEDE (i) Secured bank borrowings include bank loans and import loans. The cash flows from secured
R BRIFRITEEZRSREREN bank borrowings comprise the net amount of new bank borrowing raised and repayment of bank
BIRTERRERBITER - borrowings.

(ii) FEEHF BRI 1E [ FEN 2 5 RIE R E A (ii) Accrued interest expenses represent the interest expense accrued for the secured bank borrowings
EMNZE | BEERRENEEMEITE which included in the line item of “trade and other payables”.

R EAFBFXE -

1 5 4 (iii) BAHEAENIER S S HIEBINE R (iii) The non-cash changes of obligations under finance lease represent the addition of property, plant
BHETHARENEE  BEMERE - and equipment under finance lease arrangement.
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BEBERZERERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_ZT-NAE=A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st March, 2019
35. BEREE 35. Capital Commitments
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
BRI & ARG E BT Capital expenditures in respect of
MERELBENRBREMEZ acquisition of investment property
B A which are contracted for but not
provided on the consolidated
financial statements 106,719 -
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MREE

Financial Summary

E4 RESULTS
BE=A=1—-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
T T TEL T TER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Bam REVENUE 1,996,920 2,226,463 2,017,450 1,928,320 1,693,426
MBIAISFI(BE)  PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 121,498 76,811 (21,975) 9,280 (71,017)
FEBBEY INCOME TAX EXPENSE (19,057) (17,878) (3,919) (4,018) (8,334)
FERF(FR) PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 102,441 58,933 (25,894) 5,262 (79,351)
EEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=ZB=1+—-H
At 31st March,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
TExT FET FET FEL TER
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEHE TOTAL ASSETS 929,857 994,136 1,095,091 1,098,561 1,022,851
B4R TOTAL LIABILITIES (184,736) (241,447) (395,644) (379,656) (393,021)
BERES SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 745,121 752,689 699,447 718,905 629,830
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Veeko International Holdings Limited
BEEBRERERLDF
Stock Code A& {51%5% : 1173

10/F., Wyler Centre Phase Il, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong. & % 57 558 AEHEE 192-2005 F e D —Hi+4&
Tel E5E:(852)2887 0888 Fax {5E:(852)2310 9017 Websites #81lt: www.veeko.com.hk www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm
Listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited F&H A& X S AERAR M /AR Stock Code BR{AKEE : 1173
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